
  

 

 
BHANERO TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 

NOTICE OF THE EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (“EOGM”) of the members of 

Bhanero Textile Mills Limited (the “Company”) is to be held on Thursday 14th July 2022 at 03:00 

pm, at the registered office of the Company i.e. Umer House, 23/I, Sector 23, S. M. Farooq Road, 

Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, to transact the following business:   

(A) Ordinary Business 
To confirm the minutes of the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th 
October, 2021. 

 
(B) Special Business 

To consider and approve the Scheme of Arrangement (the "Scheme”) proposed by the board 
of directors of the Company to be entered into between the Company and Bhanero Energy 
Limited (“BEL”) subject to the sanction of the High Court of Sindh at Karachi pursuant to 
sections 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017, details of which have been provided 
in the statement prepared pursuant to section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”) 
read with the Statement of material facts under section 134(3) of the Act and annexed to the 
notice of EOGM. 

To transact any other business with the permission of the chairman. 

Karachi:                                                   (By the order of the Board) 
Dated: 10th June, 2022 

                               Mohammad Ahmed   
                               Company Secretary  
Notes:  

1. For attending the meeting electronically  

In pursuance of SMD/SE/2(20)2021/117 to ensure the participation of members in the 
general meeting electronically, the members can attend the meeting through video link 
facility, “Zoom” which is available on Google Play or Apple App Store. The entitled member(s) 
can access with following ID and password: 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/3397286733?pwd=N2FFNXpkYkZCS213bzNVNzZZbm94UT09 

Meeting ID: 339 728 6733 

Passcode: btmcorp  

 

2. The Shares Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 8th July, 2022 till 14th July, 
2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Company address i.e. Umer 
House, 23/1, Sector 23, S. M. Farooq Road, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi by 7th July, 2022 
will be treated in time for the purpose of attendance and vote in the meeting. 



  

 

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the EOGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote instead of him/ her whereas only the member can act as proxy. 

4. The statement under section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with section 134(3) of the 
Act (the “Statement”) setting forth, inter alia, briefly the terms of Scheme and explaining its 
effect, along with a copy of the Scheme, the audited financial statements for the period ended 
December 31, 2021, and the report adopted by the board of directors of the Company and 
BEL is annexed with the notice of EOGM. 

5. Copies of the Scheme together with audited financial statements for the period ended 
December 31, 2021, the letter of Mushtaq & Company, Chartered Accountants dated April 7, 
2022, the report adopted by the board of the Company and BEL and the Statement are being 
provided with the notice for the EOGM being sent to the members of the Company and the 
same can also be obtained, free of charge from the registered office of the Company during 
working days on any day prior to the meeting. 

6. Notice of EOGM together with the Statement and copy of the Scheme is placed at Company's 
website i.e. www.umergroup.com 

7. A proxy form is attached with the notice of EOGM. 

8. Mr. Muhammad Shaheen has been appointed as Chairman of the meeting and will report the 
results of the meeting to the Court. 

9. The Scheme once approved, agreed and adopted by the members of Company and BEL, the 
Scheme will remain subject to the sanction of the High Court of Sindh. 

10. The Scheme has been duly approved and adopted by the respective boards of the Company 
and BEL under section 282(2)(a) of the Act. 

11. The Scheme has been duly filed with registrar by both companies under section 282(2)(b) of 
the Act. 

12. A report as required under 282(2)(c) of the Act has been duly approved and adopted by the 
respective boards of both the Company and BEL. 

13. Since there were no difficulties encountered in respect of valuation of both companies, the 
need of expert report for valuation is not required 282(2)(d) of the Act.  

14. The audited financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2021 are disseminated 
as annexure with the Scheme.  

15. E-Voting, members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of 
Section 143 -145 of the Act and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018. 

16. Pursuant to section 132(2) of the Act the Company shall facilitate its members to attend the 
extraordinary general meeting (EOGM) through video-link by providing video-conference facility, 
if available, in the city where 10% or more shareholders of the Company reside, provided that the 
Company receives their demand to participate in EOGM through video-link at least seven (07) days 
prior to the date of meeting. 

The Company will intimate the members regarding the venue of video conference facility at least 

five (5) days before the date of EOGM. In this regard it is requested to fill the following form and 

submit at the registered address of the Company at least seven (07) days before holding of the 

EOGM: 

 



  

 

 “I/We, ________ being a member of ________, holder of ________ Ordinary Shares vide folio 

______ hereby opt for video conference facility at _____________.” 

___________________ 

  Signature of Member  

17. Under the provision of Section 72 of the Act, the shareholders are now required to replace their 
physical shares with book-entry form at earliest. Accordingly, the physical shares are now required 
to be converted into Book-Entry Form and kept by shareholders in their Central Depository System 
(CDS) Accounts. The CDS Account can be opened and maintained by any CDC Participant Stock 
Broker or CDC Investor Account Services Department (CDC IAS) of Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited situated at Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 281 (1) (A) READ WITH SECTION 134(3) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2017 

This statement set out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the 

EOGM of Bhanero Textile Mills Limited (“Company”) and the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement 

proposed to be entered into between the Company and Bhanero Energy Limited (“BEL”) (the 

“Scheme”) and explains its effect including the interest of the directors/ chief executive of the 

Company.  

1) The Scheme 

The principal object of the Scheme is as follows:  

(1) BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) to stand demerged from the BEL.  

(2) The BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking to stand  transferred to and vest in the Company, against the 

allotment and issuance of 40,964 shares in the Company by the Company to the shareholders of 

BEL as described in the Scheme in proportion to their respective shareholding in BEL; and 

(3) The cancellation of 5.99% of the shareholding of each shareholder of BEL (as described in the 

Scheme) and consequently reduction in the issued and paid-up share capital of BEL. 

The board of directors of the Company and BEL have approved the Scheme and resolved to take 

necessary steps for the approval and sanction of the Scheme.   

A petition, J.C.M No. 10 of 2022, seeking, inter alia, the sanction of the Scheme by the Hon’ble 

High Court of Sindh has been filed by the Company and BEL under sections 279 to 283 and 285 of 

the Companies Act, 2017. 

2) Approval of the Scheme 

Under section 279(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, a majority in number representing three-
fourths of the members of the Company and BEL in their respective meetings should agree to the 
Scheme in order for the same to be sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Sindh. Hence, 
pursuant to the order dated 1st June 2022, passed by the High Court of Sindh at Karachiin Judicial 
Miscellaneous Application Nos. 1192 to 1196 of 2022, in petition J.C.M No. 10 of 2022, under 
sections 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017, an Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
(EOGM) of the members of the Company will be held on 03:00 pm at 23/1 Umer House, S.M. 
Farooq Road, Korangi Industrial Area, Sector 23, Karachi. 



  

 

3) Proposed Draft of the Resolution 

RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement for the reconstruction of Bhanero Energy Limited 

and Bhanero Textile Mills Limited, inter alia, by demerging the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking 

inclusive of certain assets, rights, liabilities and obligations pertaining thereto and vesting the BEL-

Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking in Bhanero Textile Mills Limited against the allotment and issue of shares 

by Bhanero Textile Mills Limited  to the shareholders of Bhanero Energy Limited at break-up value 

all as stated in the Scheme of Arrangement dated 22 April 2022 between Bhanero Energy Limited 

and its members and Bhanero Textile Mills Limited and its members considered by this meeting 

and for the purposes of identification initialed by the chairman of this meeting, be and is hereby 

approved, adopted and agreed, subject to such modifications or additions by, or to any conditions 

which, the Sindh High Court may impose. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purposes aforesaid, Mr. Mohammad Salim, Director, and Mr. 

Muhammad Shaheen, Director, and Mr. Asim Mirza, Chief Financial Officer, be and are hereby, 

singly and jointly, authorized and empowered to do all or any of the following, for and on behalf, 

and in the name, of the Company to to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be 

deemed necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the aforementioned 

resolutions on behalf of the Company in relation to the foregoing and to further sub-delegate any 

or all of his powers hereunder.” 

4) Filing of the Scheme  

A copy of the Scheme has been filed with the registrar of Company Registration Office Karachi. 

5) Benefits of the Scheme  

The benefits of the Scheme have been provided in Part 4 (Benefits of the Scheme) of the Scheme.  
 

6) Effects of the Scheme  

The effects of the Scheme have been stated in Part 6 (The Arrangement) of the Scheme. In terms 
of the Scheme, the paid-up capital of the Company will be enhanced from 3,000,000 shares to 
3,040,964 shares as the Company will allot and issue 40,964 shares of the Company in the 
Company to the shareholders of BEL as described in the Scheme in consideration of the transfer 
of the BEL Unit-1 Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) to the Company.   
Once the Scheme has been approved by the requisite majority of the members of the Company 
and BEL, the Scheme shall become operative and effective and bind the Company and BEL and 
their respective shareholders, creditors and all other third parties once the order sanctioning the 
Scheme is passed by the Hon’ble High Court of Sindh. When the Scheme becomes effective and 
operative, it shall be treated as having effect from the date of sanction by the High Court of Sindh 
or such other date as may be expressly stated or approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Sindh. 
 
7) Swap Ratio   

Pursuant to the Scheme, the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking is being transferred to the Company at 
book value and in consideration thereof the Company shall allot and issue shares to the 



  

 

shareholders of BEL on the basis of the break-up value of the existing issued and paid-up shares 
of the Company which is significantly higher than the market value of the shares (at the time of 
approval of the Scheme by the respective board of directors of the Company and BEL). The share 
swap ratio has been calculated, on the basis of the calculations set out by Mushtaq and Company, 
Chartered Accountants, in their lettered dated 7 April 2021 as 0.27755 share in the Company  to 
be issued for each 1 share in BEL. 
 

8) Financial Statement  

In compliance with Section 282(2)(e) of the Companies Act, 2017, audited financial statements of 
the Company and BEL for the half year ended December 31, 2021 are attached herewith. 
 

9) Business  

The Company is engaged in spinning and weaving activities and one of the leading producers of 
yarn and fabric. The company operates with one spinning unit located in Sindh whereas one 
spinning unit and weaving unit are located in Punjab. Besides, the work is still in progress for one 
more spinning unit to be established in Punjab. 
 
BEL is an unlisted public company engaged in power generation activities. BEL currently operates 
in Sindh and Punjab. 
 

10) Interest of Creditors   

The Scheme will not affect the security of the existing secured creditors of the Company. The 

execution of the Scheme will not constitute a breach or an event of default by the Company under 

the existing financing documents.  

 
 
11) Interest of Directors / CEO / Majority Shareholders  

All the directors/ Chief Executive and majority shareholders of the Company are interested in the 
Scheme to the extent of their common directorships and respective shareholdings in the Company 
(to the extent applicable). The effect of the Scheme on the interest of these directors does not 
differ from its effect on the like interests of other members of the Company and BEL. 
 

12) Financial Position - Pre & Post Merger  

 

 



  

 

 

Bhanero Textile Mills Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at Dec 31, 2021

Post-Merger
Bhanero Textile Mills Ltd Bhanero Energy Ltd Bhanero Textile Mills Ltd

Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2021
Rupees Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital

60,000,000                           60,000,000                            

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 30,000,000                           30,409,640                            
Share Premium on issue of shares 108,598,461                          
Reserves 6,300,000,000                     6,300,000,000                      
Unappropriated profit 1,653,248,542                     1,653,248,542                      

7,983,248,542                     -                                           8,092,256,643                      

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing - secured 2,431,839,386                     2,431,839,386                      
Long term payables 227,541,398                         227,541,398                          
Staff retirement benefits 204,843,286                         204,843,286                          
Deferred taxation 165,286,894                         165,286,894                          
Deferred government grant 482,031,299                         482,031,299                          

3,511,542,263                     -                                           3,511,542,263                      

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 1,102,349,038                     1,102,349,038                      
Unclaimed dividend 1,720,632                              1,720,632                              
Accrued markup / interest 23,361,391                           23,361,391                            
Short term borrowings - secured 31,297,475                           31,297,475                            
Current portion of long term financing 318,344,734                         318,344,734                          
Provision for taxation - net 26,543,457                           26,543,457                            

1,503,616,727                     -                                           1,503,616,727                      

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,998,407,532                   -                                           13,107,415,633                    

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 2,742,204,376                     94,574,242                            2,836,778,618                      
Capital work in progress 2,871,671,694                     2,871,671,694                      
Long term deposit 41,621,816                           41,621,816                            

5,655,497,886                     94,574,242                            5,750,072,128                      
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 107,424,697                         14,433,859                            121,858,556                          
Stock in trade 4,525,320,782                     4,525,320,782                      
Trade debts 1,835,119,346                     1,835,119,346                      
Loans and advances 59,323,393                           59,323,393                            

Trade deposits and prepayments 214,069,936                         214,069,936                          
Other receivables 8,930,556                              8,930,556                              
Sales tax refundable 298,507,057                         298,507,057                          
Bank balances 294,213,879                         294,213,879                          

7,342,909,646                     14,433,859                            7,357,343,505                      

TOTAL ASSETS 12,998,407,532                   109,008,101                         13,107,415,633                    

Pre-Merger 

6,000,000 (2021: 6,000,000) ordinary shares of 

Rs.10 each
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Extract of the Resolutions passed by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Bhanero 

Energy Limited (the “Company”) at their meeting held on 7 April 2022 at Umer House, 

23/1, Sector 23, SM Farooq Road, KIA, Karachi . 

Further to the in-principle approval granted by the Board at its meeting held on 2 April 2022, during 

the meeting, the Board discussed, considered and approved the proposed arrangements pertaining 

to, inter alia, the reorganization / rearrangement between the Company and Bhanero Textile Mills 

Limited (“BTML”) in respect of the power generation facility of the Company having gross capacity of 

3.726 MW located at E-2, S.I.T.E Kotri, Sindh. 

Consequently, the following resolutions were passed by the Board: 

RESOLVED THAT for the purposes of carrying out, inter alia, the reorganization / rearrangement of 

the assets, liabilities, obligations and undertakings between the Company and BTML, the Company be 

and is hereby authorized to enter into an arrangement with BEL in terms of which it is proposed that, 

inter alia: 

(i) the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme), comprising primarily of the 

power generation facility at Kotri along with the gas connection and the claims and ongoing 

proceedings in respect of gas infrastructure cess, shall be transferred to, vested in and 

assumed by BTML subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Scheme including the issuance of  a corporate guarantee from the Company in favour of the 

BTML against any liability arising in respect of the claims and ongoing proceedings for gas 

infrastructure cess being transferred to BTML; and 

 

(ii) the allotment of 40,964 shares by BTML in BTML to the shareholders of the Company in 

proportion to their respective shareholding in the Company, as per the letter of M/S AD 

Akhawala & Co., Chartered Accountants dated 7 April 2022, the shares being allotted by BTML 

having been calculated on the basis of the book value of the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 as per the special 

purpose audited accounts prepared for the Company by the Company’s auditor; and 

 

(iii) 147,590 shares representing 5.99%of the issued and paid up capital of the Company shall 

stand cancelled and the issued and paid up share capital of the Company shall be reduced 

accordingly, 

 

in accordance with the terms of a Scheme of Arrangement presented before the Board 

(“Scheme”) prepared under the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies 

Act, 2017 (the “Proposed Arrangement”), subject to the approval of the requisite majority of 

the shareholders and no objections of the secured creditors of the Company, and sanction of 

the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. 
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(ii) 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purposes of the Proposed Arrangement, and subject to the 

approval by the relevant majority of the shareholders in the general meeting, the issued and paid up 

share capital of the Company be reduced from PKR 24,636,500  divided into PKR 2,463,650  ordinary 

shares of PKR 10 each to PKR 23,160,600 divided into 2,316,060  ordinary shares of PKR 10 each, and 

that such reduction be effected by cancelling capital to the extent of PKR 1,475,900 of the issued and 

paid up capital of  being the aggregate capital which is unrepresented by available assets due to the 

transfer to and the vesting in BTML of the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking, in accordance with the 

Scheme. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the draft of the Scheme shared with the Board for the Proposed 

Arrangement (along with all ancillary matters thereto), be and is hereby approved, subject to 

finalization of the same by the authorized representative(s) of the Company (which does not 

materially alter the substance of the Scheme)  and further subject to any changes and modifications 

as may be required by the shareholders of the Company and/ or BTML and / or the Honorable High 

Court of Sindh and / or such amendments as may be considered necessary to rectify an error or for 

clarifying any provision of the Scheme without materially affecting the substance thereof. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is authorized to take all necessary steps to obtain the 

requisite approvals, no objections and/or clearances from the relevant regulatory / competent 

authorities, as may be required under the applicable laws. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to file a petition / application 

(along with BTML) before the High Court of Sindh at Karachi under Sections 279 to 283 and 285 of the 

Companies Act, 2017, and all applicable / enabling laws, for the purpose of seeking sanction of the 

Scheme in respect of the Proposed Arrangement. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purposes aforesaid, Mr. Mohammad Salim, Director, Mr. 

Muhammad Shaheen, Chief Executive Officer, and Sheikh Muhammad Waseem, Director be and are 

hereby, severally, authorized and empowered to do all or any of the following, for and on behalf, and 

in the name, of the Company: 

 

(i) consult in respect of, prepare, negotiate, execute and/or file the Scheme, petition, 

applications, affidavits and any other related documents and, where required, present / file 

such documents before any regulatory authority and the High Court of Sindh at Karachi; 
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(iii) 

(ii) take all steps and actions for obtaining the requisite consents from the relevant regulatory 

authorities, creditors, members and any other persons (as applicable) with respect to the 

Proposed Arrangement and all ancillary matters, including issuing notices and convening 

meetings; 

 

(iii) file, pursue and take any and all necessary actions in respect of submitting applications and 

other documents to the relevant authorities with respect to the Proposed Arrangement and 

obtaining the approvals of the same; 

 

(iv) appoint / engage lawyer(s), consultant(s), advisor(s) and professionals as deemed necessary 

and sign Vakalatnamas and engagement letters on behalf of the Company; 

 

(v) represent the Company before the High Court of Sindh and all other relevant competent 

authorities / bodies; 

 

(vi) make such alterations and changes in the Scheme as may be expedient or necessary for 

satisfying the requirements or conditions imposed by any regulatory authority and / or the 

High Court of Sindh at Karachi, provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for 

making any material changes in the Scheme (as approved in this meeting); 

 

(vii) withdraw the Scheme, upon the instructions of the Board; 

 

(viii) generally, do all acts, deeds and things as may be required with respect to the aforementioned 

resolutions and implementing the Scheme in terms thereof, along with all incidental actions 

and matters in respect of the same; and  

 

(ix) delegate any of the above powers to any person(s) as may be deemed fit. 

 

Certified that the abovementioned is a true and valid extract from the meeting of the Board of 

Directors of Bhanero Energy Limited held on 7 April 2022. 

 

 
_________________________ 

Mr. Abdul Salam  

Company Secretary 

 

Dated: 7 April 2022 
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Extract of the Resolutions passed by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Bhanero 

Textile Mills Limited (the “Company”) at their meeting held on 7 April 2022 at Umer 

House, 23/1, Sector 23, SM Farooq Road, KIA, Karachi. 

Further to the in-principle approval granted by the Board at its meeting held on 25 February 2022, 

during the meeting, the Board discussed, considered and approved the proposed arrangements 

pertaining to, inter alia, the reorganization / rearrangement between the Company and Bhanero 

Energy Limited (“BEL”) in respect of the power generation facility of BEL having gross capacity of 3.726 

MW located at E-2, S.I.T.E Kotri, Sindh. 

Consequently, the following resolutions were passed by the Board: 

RESOLVED THAT for the purposes of carrying out, inter alia, the reorganization / rearrangement of 

the assets, liabilities, obligations and undertakings between the Company and BEL, the Company be 

and is hereby authorized to enter into an arrangement with BEL in terms of which it is proposed that, 

inter alia: 

(i) the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme), comprising primarily of the 

power generation facility at Kotri along with the gas connection and the claims and ongoing 

proceedings in respect of gas infrastructure cess, shall be transferred to, vested in and 

assumed by the Company subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in the Scheme including the issuance of a corporate guarantee from BEL in favour of the 

Company against any liability arising in respect of the claims and ongoing proceedings for gas 

infrastructure cess being transferred to the Company; 

 

(ii) the allotment of 40,964 shares by the Company in the Company to the shareholders of BEL 

on the break value of the existing issued and paid up shares of the Company, in proportion to 

their respective shareholding in BEL, as per the letter of Mushtaq and Company, Chartered 

Accountants, dated 7 April 2022, the shares being allotted by the Company having been 

calculated on the basis of the book value of the BEL-Kotri Unit 1 Undertaking being transferred 

to the Company as per the special purpose audited accounts prepared for BEL by BEL’s 

auditor; and 

 

(iii) 147,590 shares representing 5.99%of the issued and paid up capital of BEL shall stand 

cancelled and the issued and paid up share capital of BEL shall be reduced accordingly, 

 

 

 

Continued on page (ii)……… 

 

 

mailto:khioff@umergroup.com
http://www.umergroup.com/
mailto:lhroff@umergroup.com
http://www.umergroup.com/


Bhanero Textile Mills Limited 

Karachi Office : Lahore Office : 

Umer House. 23/1, Sector 23, S. M. Farooq Road, 

Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi - 74900 

Phones : (92-21) 35115177-80 Fax : (92-21) 35115190 & 35115191 

E-mail : khioff@umergroup.com Website : www.umergroup.com 

9th Floor, City Towers,  6-K,  Main Boulevard,  Gulberg–II, 

Lahore - 54660 

Phones: (92-42) 111 – 130 - 130, Fax: (92-42)  35770015 

E-mail : lhroff@umergroup.com Website : www.umergroup.com 

 

(ii) 

in accordance with the terms of a Scheme of Arrangement presented before the Board 

(“Scheme”) prepared under the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies 

Act, 2017 (the “Proposed Arrangement”), subject to the approval of the requisite majority of 

the shareholders and no objections of the secured creditors of the Company, and sanction of 

the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the special purpose financial position statement of the Company as at 31 

December 2021 together with the notes annexed thereto copies of which statements of financial 

position and notes together with the auditor’s report thereon as tabled at the meeting be and are 

hereby approved and that Mr. Khurram Salim, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Muhammad Salim, 

Director, and Mr. Asim Mirza, Chief Financial Officer be and are hereby authorized to sign the said 

audited accounts and that the said special purpose financial position statement comprising of the 

financial position statement and the notes thereon as signed by the Chief Executive Officer, the 

Director, and the Chief Financial Officer as aforesaid and by Mushtaq and Company, Chartered 

Accountant, be submitted to the High Court, the members of the Company and others concerned for 

and in connection with the Scheme at the time and times and in the manner required and as may 

from time to time be determined by the said Chief Executive Officer, the Director, the Chief Financial 

Officer, or the persons authorized below. 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the draft of the Scheme shared with the Board for the Proposed 

Arrangement (along with all ancillary matters thereto), be and is hereby approved, subject to 

finalization of the same by the authorized representative(s) of the Company (which does not 

materially alter the substance of the Scheme)  and further subject to any changes and modifications 

as may be required by the shareholders of the Company and/ or BEL and / or the Honorable High 

Court of Sindh and / or such amendments as may be considered necessary to rectify an error or for 

clarifying any provision of the Scheme without materially affecting the substance thereof. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purposes of the Proposed Arrangement, the Company shall allot 

and issue an aggregate of 40,964 ordinary shares of the Company credited as fully paid at par to the 

shareholders of BEL in proportion to the existing shareholding of such shareholders as described in 

the Scheme, which calculation is based on (a) the audited special purpose financial statements of the 

Company for the half year ended December 31, 2021; and (b) the audited special purpose financial 

statements of BEL for the half year ended December 31, 2021; and (c) the calculations carried out by 

Mushtaq and Company, Chartered Accountant, as stipulated in their letter dated 7 April 2022, in each 

case to the extent applicable and identified in the Scheme, be and are hereby approved. 
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(iii) 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, upon the sanction of the Scheme (and in terms thereof), the Company 

shall allot and issue an aggregate of 40,964 ordinary shares of the Company credited as fully paid at 

par to the shareholders of BEL in proportion to the existing shareholding of such shareholders as 

described in the Scheme. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is authorized to take all necessary steps to obtain the 

requisite approvals, no objections and/or clearances from the relevant regulatory / competent 

authorities, as may be required under the applicable laws. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to file a petition / application 

(along with BEL) before the High Court of Sindh at Karachi under Sections 279 to 283 and 285 of the 

Companies Act, 2017, and all applicable / enabling laws, for the purpose of seeking sanction of the 

Scheme in respect of the Proposed Arrangement. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purposes aforesaid, Mr. Mohammad Salim, Director, and Mr. 

Muhammad Shaheen, Director, and Mr. Asim Mirza, Chief Financial Officer, be and are hereby, singly 

and jointly, authorized and empowered to do all or any of the following, for and on behalf, and in the 

name, of the Company: 

 

(i) consult in respect of, prepare, negotiate, execute and/or file the Scheme, petition, 

applications, affidavits and any other related documents and, where required, present / file 

such documents before any regulatory authority and the High Court of Sindh at Karachi; 

 

(ii) take all steps and actions for obtaining the requisite consents from the relevant regulatory 

authorities, creditors, members and any other persons (as applicable) with respect to the 

Proposed Arrangement and all ancillary matters, including issuing notices and convening 

meetings; 

 

(iii) file, pursue and take any and all necessary actions in respect of submitting applications and 

other documents to the relevant authorities with respect to the Proposed Arrangement and 

obtaining the approvals of the same; 

 

(iv) appoint / engage lawyer(s), consultant(s), advisor(s) and professionals as deemed necessary 

and sign Vakalatnamas and engagement letters on behalf of the Company; 

 

Continued on page (iv)……… 

 

 

mailto:khioff@umergroup.com
http://www.umergroup.com/
mailto:lhroff@umergroup.com
http://www.umergroup.com/


Bhanero Textile Mills Limited 

Karachi Office : Lahore Office : 

Umer House. 23/1, Sector 23, S. M. Farooq Road, 

Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi - 74900 

Phones : (92-21) 35115177-80 Fax : (92-21) 35115190 & 35115191 

E-mail : khioff@umergroup.com Website : www.umergroup.com 

9th Floor, City Towers,  6-K,  Main Boulevard,  Gulberg–II, 

Lahore - 54660 

Phones: (92-42) 111 – 130 - 130, Fax: (92-42)  35770015 

E-mail : lhroff@umergroup.com Website : www.umergroup.com 

 

(iv) 

 

(v) represent the Company before the High Court of Sindh and all other relevant competent 

authorities / bodies; 

 

(vi) make such alterations and changes in the Scheme as may be expedient or necessary for 

satisfying the requirements or conditions imposed by any regulatory authority and / or the 

High Court of Sindh at Karachi, provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for 

making any material changes in the Scheme (as approved in this meeting); 

 

(vii) withdraw the Scheme, upon the instructions of the Board; 

 

(viii) generally, do all acts, deeds and things as may be required with respect to the aforementioned 

resolutions and implementing the Scheme in terms thereof, along with all incidental actions 

and matters in respect of the same; and  

 

(ix) delegate any of the above powers to any person(s) as may be deemed fit. 

 

Certified that the abovementioned is a true and valid extract from the meeting of the Board of 

Directors of Bhanero Textile Mills Limited held on 7 April 2022. 

 

 
_________________________ 

Mohammad Ahmed 

Company Secretary 

 

 

Dated: 7 April 2022 
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A. D. Akhawala & Co.
Chartered Accountants

|

In \ e ) 321, 3Floor, Uni Centre,TTT I. I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi 74000,
Pakistan.

Phone: +92-21-32411268
+92-21-32427857

Fax:  +92-21-32427857
Web:  www.adaco.com.pk

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Bhanero Energy Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Bhanero Energy Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the period from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. In our opinion, the accompanying financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 1.3 of the financial statements in which described that the annexed
financial statements for the period from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021 has been audited on the
specific request of the board of directors of the Company to formulate and propose to the Board of
Directors, as discussed and directed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 05, 2022
the terms to carve out BEL Unit 1 and to merge BEL Unit 1 with and into Bhanero Textile Mills
Limited (BTML) through a scheme of arrangement Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

dee
Affiliate with
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern,

We communicate with the proprietor regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Abdullah
Dawood Akhawala.

MA nN Abe
vw8,

A.D. Akhawala & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi, Dated: April 05, 2022
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Note

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Sharecapital 3

Capital reserve 4

Unappropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 5

Deferred liability 6

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 7

Accrued interest/mark-up
on long term loan

Current portion of
long term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND 8
COMMITMENT

BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

December, 31 June, 30
2021 2021

Rupees Rupees Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

24,636,500 24,636,500 Property, plant and equipment 9

60,340,000 60,340,000 Investment property 10

1,207,495,485 1,146,161,715 Long term deposits 11

1,292,471,985 1,231,138,215

CURRENT ASSETS

52,982,204 58,028,076 Stores, spares and loose tools 12
350,820,902 340,659,639

Loan, advances other receivables 13
and prepayments

112,849,878 102,185,115|Other financial assets 14

Sales tax refundable
409,375 431,237

Trade debts 15

Income tax refundable
10,091,744 10,091,744

Bank balances
-in current accounts 16

Asset held for transfer 17
123,350,998 112,708,096

1,819,626,088 1,742,534,026

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

~—
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Jere
~§——a

DIRECTOR

December, 31 June, 30
2021 2021

Rupees Rupees

597,295,924 697,331,035

465,526,032 470,718,828

2,484,127 2,484,127

165,028,567 111,907,249

3,303,958 939,242

3,300,000 3,300,000

13,682,547 10,944,514

98,402,756 44 963,139

15,973,371 15,943,371

345,620,705 384,002,520

109,008,101 -

754,320,005 572,000,035

1,819,626,088 1,742,534,026



BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 01, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

July 01,2021 to July 01, 2020 to
December 31, June 30,

2021 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Sale of electricity 18 173,651,200 348,756,725

Generation cost 19 (135,856,272) (222,174,007)
Gross profit 37,794,928 126,582,718

Administrative expenses 20 (11,148,311) (19,184,622)
Other operating expenses 21 (1,753,265) (7,247,051)

Finance cost 22 (1,379,941) (2,368,373)
23,513,412 97,782,673

Other operating income 23 37,633,579 326,108,814
Profit before taxation 61,146,990 423,891,487

Taxation - -

Profit after taxation 61,146,990 423,891,487

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on liability arising on experience adjustments 186,779 3,289,999

Total comprehensive profit for the period/year 61,333,769 427,181,486

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 24 24.82 172.06

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statementsfdaHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIY

Dee



BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 01, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Provision for staff retirement benefits
Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Infrastructure fee
GID Cess, tariff differences and surcharges
Reversal for GIDC cess provision
Finance cost

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Store, spares and loose tools
Loan, advances, other receivables and prepayments
Sales tax refundable
Trade debts

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Finance cost paid
Staff retirement benefits paid
Taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Payment made for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Payment madefor development charges- investment properties

Net cash generated from investing activities

Dee

July 01,2021 to July 01, 2020 to
December 31, June 30,

2021 2021
Rupees Rupees

61,146,990 423,891,487

5,460,870 11,136,930
(37,467,990) (325,969,762)

988,144 938,279
- 1,864,725
- 172,897

9,359,897 7,512,036
- (90,676,789)

1,162,609 1,730,939
(20,496,471) (393,290,745)
40,650,520 30,600,741

(67,555,176) (21,782,325)
(2,364,717) 10,367,642
(2,738,033) 12,062,752

(53,439,617) (44,963,139)

10,664,763 58,119,284
(115,432,780) 13,804,213

(74,782,260) 44,404,955

(1,184,470) (1,735,875)
- (7,354,459)

(30,000) (820,855)

(75,996,730) 34,493,766

49,000,000 438,366,000
- (10,806,740)
- 146,084

(6,339,214) (47,844,713)
42,660,786 379,860,631



July 01,2021 to July 01, 2020 to

December 31, June 30,
2021 2021

Rupees Rupees

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of loan from banking companies (5,045,871) (1,261,700)
Loan obtained from directors and relatives - (6,800,000)
Gas infrastructure payment during the year - (40,237,761)

Net cash used in financing activities (5,045,871) (48,299,461)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (38,381,815) 366,054,936

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period/year 384,002,520 17,947,584

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofthe period/year 345,620,705 384,002,520

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 01, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

Issued,
subscribed

Long termand paid-up Capital Unappropriated 8
.

ital t loan-Equity Totalcapita reserve profi contributioneee —— Rupees -------——-—————-cemmmem eee
Balance at July 01, 2020 24,636,500 60,340,000 718,980,230 6,800,000 810,756,730

Profit for the year ended June 30, 2021 - - 423,891,487 - 423,891,487

Repayment of long term equity loan - - - (6,800,000) (6,800,000)

Other comprehensive income
- Actuarial loss on employees

retirement benefits - - 3,289,999 - 3,289,999
Balance at June 30, 2021 24,636,500 60,340,000 1,146,161,715 - 1,231,138,215

Profit for the period from July 01, - - 61,146,990 - 61,146,990
2021 to December 31, 2021

Other comprehensive income
* Actuarial loss on employees

retirement benefits - - 186,779 - 186,779

Balance at December 31, 2021 24,636,500 60,340,000  1,207,495.485 - 1,292,471,985

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 01, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Bhanero Energy Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited Company on January
02, 1994 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on
May 30, 2017).

The principal activity of the Company is to generate and supply electric power.

The geographical location and address of the Company’s business units, including mills/plant is as under:

-The Company's registered office is situated at Umer House 23/1, Sector 23, S.M Farooq Road, Korangi Industrial
area, Karachi in the province of Sindh.

-The power plants are located at Kotri in the province of Sindh (Unit-I) and Sheikhupura in the province of Punjab
(Unit-II)

1.2 These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

1.3 These special purpose audited financial statements are prepared for the period from 1 July 2021 to 31 July 2021 to
. formulate and propose to the Board of Directors, as discussed and directed by the Board of Directors in their

meeting held on April 05, 2022, the terms to carve out BEL Unit 1 and to merge BEL Unit 1 with and into
Bhanero Textile Mills Limited (BTML) through a scheme of arrangement, the draft of which has been approved
by the Board of Directors, under section 279-282 and section 285 of the Companies Act, 2017, to be entered into
between BEL and BTML, subject to finalization of the scheme and fulfillment of necessary legal facilities. As a
result, these special purpose financial statements may not be suitable for any other purpose. Our report is intended
solely for the use of the Board of Directors in connection with the abovementioned purpose and should not be
distributed to or used by parties other than the Board of Directors.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis ofpreparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the ‘historical cost convention’ except for financial assets and
financial liabilities, which are stated at fair value/Amortized value and obligation in respect of defined benefit plan
(gratuity) which is measured at the present value.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below :

Se



IN

IE

2.3 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the period ended

December 31, 2021.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the period ended December 31, 2021.

These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not

expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional

disclosures.
Effective from accounting period beginning on

or after:

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent June 01, 2020

concessions

Amendments to the conceptual framework for financial

reporting, including amendments to references to the January 01, 2020

conceptual framework in IFRS

Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ -
Definition of a business

January 01, 2020

Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements’

. . . . 01, 2020
and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

January 0

Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of material

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39

'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and January 01, 2020

IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Interest rate

benchmark reform

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on

or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either

not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial

statements other than certain additional disclosures.

oe?



Amendments / Interpretation

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to

IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent
concessions extended beyond June 30, 2021

Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - Reference

to the conceptual framework

Amendments to IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment’ -

Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements’ -

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ -

Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of accounting

estimates

Amendments to 'lAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related

to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction.

pao

Effective from accounting period beginning on
or after:

January 01, 2021

April 01,2021

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023



2.4

25

2.6

27

BY

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

Employee benefit costs

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who have completed a
minimum qualifying period of service. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through
actuarial valuation carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method by the independent valuer.
Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income.

The liability recognized in the balance sheet is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting date as determined as per actuarial valuation. The recent valuation of the scheme was carried out as at
December 31, 2021 by the management of the Company. Details of the scheme are given in note 6.1 of these
financial statements.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account
applicable tax credit, rebates and exemption available if any. For income covered under final tax regime, taxation
is based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

Profits and gains derived by the Company from electric power generation project are exempt from tax under clause
132 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Capital gain arise on any item is taxable as per relevant section of incometax ordinance 2001.

The Company is also exempt from minimum tax on turnover under Section 113 as per clause V, clause 1I, of Part
1V of Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether billed to the Company or not.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment except land and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Land and capital work in progress are stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method except plant and machinery, the units of
production/output method is used atthe rates specified in the operating assets note 10.

In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and upto the month preceding the disposal respectively.

Assets residual values, if significant and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Normal repair and maintenance costs are charged to income during the period in which they are incurred. The
company once in a three year period incurred major capital expenditure on overhauling ofits power generators,which is depreciated over three year period on straight line basis.

Gain and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, if any, are recognized as and when incurred.

Capital work in progress

All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried
under capital work in progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available for
use.

Asset heldfor sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining
assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no lossis allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax
assets, employee benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale
or held-for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurementare recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized or
depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Impairment of assets

Financial assets

The impairment model applies as per IFRS 9 to financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and
debt investments at FVTOCI,but notto investments in equity instruments.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis:

-12 - months ECLs: These are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

-Lifetime ECLs: These are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instruments

Pee ,



-

EE

EE

EE

EES

21

2.12

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost as explained above.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, except deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the profit and loss account, for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of
the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net off depreciation or amortization,if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

Investment property

Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and which is not in Company's own use is
classified as investment property. The investment property of the Company comprise of land and is valued using
cost model i.e. at cost and identified impairment loss, if any.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to Profit & loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized.

Investment

Regular way purchase or sale of investments

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized using trade date accounting. Trade date is the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiary and associated companies

These investments are measured at cost.

Fair value through other comprehensive income or loss

Investment securities held by the Company which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates or equity prices are classified as available for sale. These investments are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction cost and subsequently re-measured at fair value. The investments for which quoted market
price is not available, are measured at costs as it is not possible to apply any other valuation methodology.
Gains and losses arising from re-measurement at fair value is recognized directly in the equity under fair value
reserve until sold, collected, or otherwise disposed off at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is included in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

There are investments designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. There are initially measured at
fair value and changes on re-measurement are taken to profit and loss account.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

Amortized Cost

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity investments are
initially recognized at cost inclusive of transaction cost and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using
effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement
when the investments are de-recognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Derecognition

All investments are de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Stores and spares

These are valued at the cost, determined on moving average cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving
items(if any). Items in transit are valued at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon up to balance sheet
date.

Debtors and other receivables

Debtors and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables
based on review of outstanding amounts at the year end. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off
when identified. Other receivable are recognized and carried at cost which approximate its fair value.

Financial instruments

a) Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be.

b) Classification offinancial assets

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
a) at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL™),
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCT”), OR
¢) at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of
instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

-the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely Payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

-the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and
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-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

b) Classification offinancial liabilities

The company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:
a) at fair value through profit or loss or,
b) at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as
instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

¢) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured atfair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in
other comprehensive income/(loss).

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realized and unrealized gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Where
management has opted to recognize a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company’s
own credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment offinancial assets

The impairment model applies to financial assets as per IFRS 9 measured at amortized cost, contract assets and
debt investments at FVTOCI,but not to investments in equity instruments.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis:

-12 - months ECLs: These are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

-Lifetime ECLs: These are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instruments

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost as explained above.
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2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial
assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of
ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit
or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected oninitial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, butis transferred to statement of changes in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue on account of energy is recognized on transmission of electricity using the ‘performance obligation
satisfied over time’ approach under IFRS 15 as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Companys performance. There is no significant financing component attached to the receivables
from the customer. Company submits invoices of energy on monthly basis.

Income on bank deposits are recorded on time proportionate basis using effective interest rate.

Rental income from investment property thatis leased to a third party under an operating lease is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in ‘other income’.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend and other appropriations are recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which
the dividend and other appropriations are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Offsetting offinancial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet,if the Company
has a legal enforceable right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis orto realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Pak. Rupees are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transaction. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date except where forward exchange
contracts have been entered into for repayment of liabilities, in that case, the rates contracted for are used.

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the period.

Earning per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2.22 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with international financial reporting standards, as

applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period ofthe revision and future periodsif revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with significant risk of material judgmentin
the next financial year are set forth below:

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 10.1); and
- Provision for staff gratuity (note 7.1);

SHARE CAPITAL
Dec, 31 June 30, Dec, 31 June 30,

. 2021 2021 2021 2021

Number ofShares Rupees Rupees

Authorized capital
15,000,000 15,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 150,000,000 150,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up
Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

2,463,650 2,463,650 fully paid in cash 24,636,500 24,636,500
2,463,650 2,463,650 24,636,500 24,636,500

3.1 There is no movement in share capital during the reporting year.

3.2 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

3.3 The Company has no reserved shares under options and sales contract.

CAPITAL RESERVE

This represents share premium received on issuance of 2,413,600 (June 30, 2021: 2,413,600) ordinary shares issued at Rs.

25 per share.
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Dec, 31 June 30,
2021 2021

5 LONG TERM FINANCING Rupees Rupees

- Secured

SBP Long term finance 5.1 63,073,948 68,119,820

Less: current portion of long term liabilities (10,091,744) (10,091,744)
52,982,204 58,028,076

5.1 Movement

Opening balance 68,119,820 69,381,520

Repayment of loan during the period (5,045,872) (1,261,700)

Closing balance 63,073,948 68,119,820

5.7.1 Term Finance has been obtained from United Bank Limited under LTFF scheme of SBP to import machinery for

balancing , modernization and replacing . The finance is secured by specific charge over the asset with 25%

margin and first hypothecation charge of Rs. 80 million over plant and machinery including energy plant installed

at at SITE, Kotri, Sindh. The facility is repayable in 10 years (32 equal quarterly installments) including grace
period of two year. The finance carries fixed mark-up at SBP rate plus 0.5% (2020: fixed mark-up SBP rate plus

0.5%) per annum.

6 DEFERRED LIABILITY

Staff retirement gratuity 6.1 6,334,567 5,533,201

Infrastructure fee payable 6.2 2,981,399 2,981,399

Gas Infrastructure Cess and surcharges 6.3 341,504,936 332,145,039
350,820,902 340,659,639

6.1 Staff retirement gratuity

The latest valuation of gratuity scheme was carried out as at December 31, 2021 using the projected unit credit

method by the management of the Company based on the following significant assumptions:

Dec, 31 June 30,
2021 2021

Discount rate (% per annum) 10 10

Salary increase rate (% per annum) 9 9

Dec, 31 June 30,
2021 2021

Notes Rupees Rupees
6.1.1 Liability recognized in balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 6,334,567 5,533,201

6.1.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations:

Opening balance 5,533,202 15,239,380

Expenses recognized in profit and loss 6.1.2.1 988,144 938,279

Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income 6.1.2.2 (186,779) (3,289,999)
Benefits paid during the year - (7,354,459)

Closing balance 6,334,567 5,533,201
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6.1.2.1

6.1.2.2

6.1.2.3

6.2

6.3

6.3.1

Dec 31, June 30,

Expenses recognized in profit and loss Notes 2021 2021
Rupees Rupees

Current service cost 508,052 478,788
Interest cost 480,092 459,491

988,144 938,279

Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on liability arising on
experience adjustments (186,779) (3,289,999)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

December 31,
2021 June 30,2021 June 30,2020 June 30,2019 June 30, 2019

< Rupees: >

Present value of defined
benefit obligation 6,334,567 5,533,201 15,239,380 19,971,384 20,080,528

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumptions assumptions assumptions

Discount rate 1% (502,545) 603,032
Salary growth rate 1% 603,032 (511,036)

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in

calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the balance sheet.

Sindh Infrastructure Cess was levied by Excise and Taxation Officer [ETO] Government of Sindh on movement of
imported goods entering the Sindh Province from outside Pakistan and Punjab Infrastructure Tax levied by ETO
Government of Punjab on movement of imported goods entering the Punjab Province from outside Pakistan. The
Companyfiled petitions in Sindh High Court and Lahore High Court against the levy. During the year, Sindh High
Court decided the case against the Company and directed to pay the outstanding amount to Excise and Taxation
Department. The Company has filed petition in Supreme Court of Pakistan subsequent to year end and obtained
stay on the recovery of these levies. During the pendency of final judgment on this, the Honorable Courts granting
stay have directed the petitioners to pay 50% of liability for levies to ETO and to arrange bank guarantees for the
remaining amount in favor of ETO. The liability represents 50% of levies against which guarantees have been
arranged in favor of ETO. The company has provided bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 3.3 million (2021: Rs. 3.3

million ) in respect of unpaid infrastructure fee.

It includes GIDC amounting to Rs 155,946,867 (June 30, 2021: Rs 155,946,867).

The Company vide petition filed before the High Court of Sindh challenged the recovery of GIDC installments.
The High Court of Sindh vide its order dated 22 November 2020 has suspended the recovery of GIDC
installments. Further, the Company vide petition 1848/2021 dated 30 August 2021 filed before the High Court of
Sindh challenged the levy of GIDC on the ground of the Government's failure to comply with the Supreme Court's
judgment dated 13 August 2020 in relation to commencement of work on specified projects.
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Dec 31, June 30,
2021 2021

Notes Rupees Rupees

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 28,271,313 20,731,020

Accrued expenses 23,933,193 23,104,084

Advance from customer 7.1 48,717,948 48,717,948

Workers profit participation fund 6,850,186 5,251,486

Other liabilities 5,077,238 4,380,577
112,849,878 102,185,115

7.1 This amount is received from My Energy (Private) Limited against the sale of generators.

7.2 Workers’ profit participation fund

Balance at beginning of the year 5,251,486 -

Allocation for the period/year 1,270,482 5,251,486

Add: mark-up on the funds utilized in Company's business 328,218 -

Balance at the end of the period/year 6,850,186 5,251,486

7.2.1 Mark-up on the balance of workers’ profit participation fund is calculated at the rate of 8% per annum.

~

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT Dec 31,
2021

8.1 Contingencies Notes Rupees

8.1.1 Bank guarantee issued on behalf of the Company in favor of
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 63,507,190
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited -against tariff difference 14,639,054

The Director Excise and Taxation - against unpaid infrastructure fee 3,300,000

8.2 Commitment

No commitment exists at period end (2021: Nil).

Joe”

June 30,
2021

Rupees

58,377,749
3,293,317
3,300,000



9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPTMENT

COST * DEPRECIATION
Carmi. . arrying

Particulars Asset held for FromTon‘ ford,or valueat Lo.At June 30, transfer to At December~~At June 30, 2021 to ame transfer to
At December December 31, Depreciation

ese Rate2021 BTML 31, 2021 2021
30, 2021 BTML 31, 2021 2021

Comme mc mcccecc ence cmeeae Rupees - wc ccccccmcm mm emeceena >

Freehold land 2,829,535 - 2,829,535 - - - - 2,829,535 -

Buildings on freehold land
-factory 57,181,466 (2,962,684) 54,218,782 41,404,977 860,989 (2,740,152) 39,525,814 14,692,968 10

-non factory 16,583,031 - 16,583,031 10,118,275 87,557 10,205,832 6,377,199 5

Plant and machinery 989,064,657 (153,016,322) 836,048,335 418,834,323 2,174,806 (59,430,587) 361,578,542 474,469,793 *

Heating and cooling system 159,448,256 - 159,448,256 87,067,064 743,376 87,810,440 71,637,816 5and *

Electric installation and equipment 50,362,434 (5,425,604) 44,936,830 24,370,964 1,299,571 (4,922,512) 20,748,023 24,188,807 10

Tanks 12,209,041 - 12,209,041 11,247,427 48,081 11,295,508 913,533 10

Furniture and fixtures 1,333,077 (403,321) 929,756 1,152,213 9,043 (325,952) 835,304 94,452 10

Office equipment 439,751 - 439,751 354,385 4,269 358,654 81,097 10

Gas fittings 2,047,457 (2,047,457) - 1,852,179 9,764 (1,861,944) - - 10

Vehicles 7,317,574 - 7,317,574 5,083,435 223,415 5,306,850 2,010,724 20

1,298,816,279 (163,855,388) 1,134,960,891 601,485,244 5,460,870 (69,281,147) 537,664,967 597,295,924

* units of production method
** Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

July 01, 2021 to July 01, 2020 to
December 31, June 30,

Note 2021 2021
Rupees Rupees

10.1.2 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:
Generation cost 19 5,333,690 10,820,113
Administrative expense 20 127,180 316,817

5,460,870 11,136,930
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For comparative period

coST . DEPRECIATION
Carrying  Depr

Particulars Additions/ For the value at June eciati
At July 1, 2020 Transfer*

At June 30, At July I,
year/Transfer*

At June 30,
30, 2021 on2021 2020 2021 Rate

Comm meme ered emcee Rupees -- - - ~— —— «o-oo eeeeee - >

Freehold land 2,829,535 - 2,829,535 - - - 2,829,535
Buildings on freehold land

factory 57,181,466 - 57,181,466 39,736,435 1,668,542 41,404,977 15,776,489 10

-non factory 16,583,031 - 16,583,031 9,698,066 420,209 10,118,275 6,464,756 5

Plant and machinery 989,064,657 - 989,064,657 414,517,431 4,316,892 418,834,323 570,230,334 *

Heating and cooling system 148,641,516 10,806,740 159,448,256 85,940,378 1,126,686 87,067,064 72,381,192
Electric installation and equipment 50,362,434 - 50,362,434 21,483,023 2,887,941 24,370,964 25,991,470 10

Tanks 12,209,041 - 12,209,041 11,140,581 106,846 11,247,427 961,614 10

Furniture and fixtures 1,333,077 - 1,333,077 1,132,117 20,096 1,152,213 180,864 10

Office equipment 439,751 - 439,751 344,900 9,485 354,385 85,366 10

Gas fittings 2,047,457 - 2,047,457 1,830,482 21,697 1,852,179 195,278 10

Vehicles 7,317,574 - 7,317,574 4,524,899 558,536 5,083,435 2,234,139 20

1,288,009,539 10,806,740 1,298,816,279 590,348,313 11,136,930 601,485,244 697,331,035

* units of production method

$247



Dec 31, June 30,
2021 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY - AT COST

Land 10.1 465,526,032 470,718,828

10.1 Cost

At July 01 470,718,828 535,270,353
Development charges paid 6,339,214 47,844,713
Disposal of land during the period (11,532,010) (112,396,238)
At June 30 465,526,032 470,718,828

10.1.1 This represents 141 (December 31, 2021: 145) plots in DHA, Lahore and 1 (December 31, 2020: 1) plot in Lake
City, Lahore with total area of 79 kanals and 15 Marlas (2021: 81 Kanals and 15 Marlas).

10.1.2 Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited has carried out an independent valuation at June 30, 2021 of investment properties
located at Lahore. The fair value of investment properties on the basis of their professional assessment is Rs. 3

billion . The forced sale value of the investment properties is Rs. 2.55 billion.

11 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

These represent security deposits placed with various utility companies. Dec 31, June 30,
. 2021 2021

12 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Note Rupees Rupees

Stores 57,165,799 56,829,328
Spares 13,318,854 13,318,854
Oil and lubricants 114,111,625 46,892,919

184,596,279 117,041,102
Less: Stores and spares held for transfer (14,433,859) -

170,162,420 117,041,102
Less: Provision for slow moving stores and spares 13.1 (5,133,853) (5,133,853)

165,028,567 111,907,249

12.1 Provision for slow moving stores and spares

Opening balance 5,133,853 3,269,128
Charge of provision during the year - 1,864,725
Closing balance 5,133,853 5,133,853

13 LOAN, ADVANCES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

- Considered good

. Secured
Loan to employees 146,000 167,000

Unsecured

Advance to suppliers 323,871 27.474
Prepaid expenses 904,473 175,138
Other receivables 1,929,615 569,630

3,303,958 939,242Ne



Dec 31, June 30,
2021 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Term deposit receipt 3,300,000 3,300,000

14.1 The Term deposit receipt due to mature on February 22, 2022. The TDR and carries markup at the rate of 5.50%
(June 30, 2021: 6.50% to 5.50%) per annum payable quarterly in arrears. The TDRsis given as counter guarantee
against bank guarantee facility.

15 TRADE DEBTS

Secured- Considered good
Trade debts- from related party 15.1 98,402,756 44,963,139

15.1 The amountis receivable from Bhanero Textile Mills Limited against sale of electricity

15.2 The age analysis of debtors

1 to 30 days 98,402,756 44,963,139

16~~BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank - in current accounts 345,620,705 384,002,520

17 ASSET HELD FOR TRANSFER
-to Bhanero Textiles Mills Limited

Property, plant and equipment 17.1 94,574,242 -
Stores and spares 17.2 14,433,859 -

109,008,101 -

17.1 Property, plant and equipment

AccumulatedCost
depreciation

Net book value

ComoeeeeRUP@ ESmreBuildings on freehold land
factory 2,962,684 2,740,152 222,532
Plant and machinery 153,016,322 59,430,587 93,585,735
Electric installation and equipment 5,425,604 4,922,512 503,093
Furniture and fixtures 403,321 325,952 77,369
Gas fittings 2,047,457 1,861,944 185,513

163,855,388 69,281,147 94,574,242

17.2 It includes slow moving items of stores and spares amounting to Rs. 5,133,853.
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18 SALE OF ELECTRICITY

Sale
Sales tax
Electric duty- Excise and taxation, Sindh

19 GENERATION COST

Oil and gas consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Utilities
Stores and spares
Professional tax
Insurance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Telephone and postage
Traveling and conveyance
Provision for slow moving on stores and spares
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Others

July 01, 2021 to July 01, 2020 to
December 31, June 30,

2021 2021

203,305,623 408,317,569
(29,540,133) (59,328,194)

(114,290) (232,650)
173,651,200 348,756,725

107,404,580 139,191,094
19.1 4,555,753 10,858,855

9,896,175 15,586,815
2,455,316 32,407,305

15,000 30,000
4,911,000 8,642,423

53,950 104,219
32,439 72,665
43,444 115,277

- 1,864,725
1,154,925 2,256,755

9 5,333,690 10,820,113
- 223,761

135,856,272 222,174,007

19.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 814,932 (2021: Rs.750,997) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

20 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors remuneration
Staff salaries and benefits
Travelling and conveyance
Telephone and postage
Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Fees and subscription
Legal and professional
Software maintenance
Auditors remuneration
Depreciation
Others

25 6,000,000 12,000,000
20.1 1,239,065 1,868,393

12,250 9,200
35,141 81,083

- 6,110
522,032 814,168

1,396,643 1,241,439
1,425,000 2,360,000

- 72,311
20.2 350,000 350,000

9 127,180 316,818
41,000 65,100

11,148,311 19,184,622

20.1 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs.173,212 (2021: Rs. 187,282) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

20.2 Auditors remuneration

Audit fee
Out of pocket expense

21 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE

Workers profit participation fund
Workers welfare fund

0°—5

325,000 325,000
25,000 25,000

350,000 350,000

1,270,482 5,251,486
482,783 1,995,565

1,753,265 7,247,051
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July 01, 2021 to July 01, 2020 to

December 31, June 30,

FINANCE COST 2021 2021

Interest /mark-up on
Long term financing 834,390 1,730,939

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 328,219 -

Bank charges and commission 217,333 637,434
1,379,941 2,368,373

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of investment property 37,467,990 325,969,762

Income from financial assets

Interest income 165,589 139,052
37,633,579 326,108,814

EARNINGS PER SHARE
- Basic and diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company which is computed as follows:
.

Profit after taxation (Rupees) 61,146,990 423,891,487

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period/year 2,463,650 2,463,650

Earnings per share (Rupees) 24.82 172.06

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in accounts for the year for remuneration to director and executives of the Company were

as follows:

EE Rupees - - - - - >
Director Executives July 01, 2021

to Dec 31, 2021

Remuneration 6,000,000 1,434,000 7,434,000

Number of persons 1 1

Cemmm- Rupees - - - - - >
Direct E. tisector YECUBVES

July 01, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Remuneration 12,000,000 2,000,121 14,000,121

Number of persons 1 1

25.1 No other benefits are provided to the Director of the Company during the year.
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26 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise directors, associated undertakings, key management personnel. The Company in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amount due from and to related parties are shownunder receivables and payables. Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

Dec 31, June 30,
Name, relationship and percentage 2021 2021

Nature of transactions Rupees Rupeesshareholding with the Company

-Associated companies (by virtue of
common directorship)

Bhanero Textile Mills Limited Sale of electricity 171,125,106 422,010,543

Faisal Spinning Mills Limited Sale of electricity 177,020 1,043,668

Blessed Textile Limited Sale of electricity 2,463,364 5,679,238

Admiral (Private) Limited Rentpaid 154,500 309,000

-Directors / Relatives

Mr. Saqib Salim Loan repaid - 5,000,000(3.70% (2021: 3.70%) of share holdings)

Mrs. Nazli shakeel Loan repaid - 450,000(5.8% (2021: 0.097%) of share holdings)

Mrs. Anjum sharif (Spouse of director) Loan repaid - 450,000

Mrs. Seema Shaheen (Spouse of director) Loan repaid

- 450,000Mrs.Yasmeen Begum Loan repaid
(0.093% (2021: 0.093%) of share holdings) - 450,000

0°yy
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Dec, 31 June, 30
2021 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY Rupees Rupees

Financial assets as per balance sheet

Long term deposits 2,484,127 2,484,127
Loan, advances other receivables and prepayments 2,075,615 736,630
Other financial assets 3,300,000 3,300,000
Trade debt 98,402,756 44,963,139
Bank balances-in current accounts 345,620,705 384,002,520

451,883,203 435,486,416

Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Long term financing 63,073,948 68,119,820
Trade and other payables 112,849,878 102,185,115

175,923,826 170,304,935

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's financial risk management. The responsibility includes developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight
responsibility, management has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring and managing
the Company's financial risk exposures. The Company's exposure to the risks associated with the
financial instruments and the risk management policies and procedures are summarized as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any
collateral. Concentration ofcredit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts
are entered into with the same party, or when counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities, or have activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The
Company does not have any significant exposure to customers from any single customer.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for trade debts and
balances / deposits with banks. The carrying amount offinancial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure.

Trade debts

The trade debts at year end are due from local customers against local sales. Management assesses
the credit quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly
influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company has no major
concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The Company establishes an allowance for
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses for overdue balances based on analysis of
each customer.

Ae



Balances with banks

The Company deposits its fund with banks carrying good credit standings assessed by reputable credit
agencies. These banksare credit rated as follows:

Name of the Bank Credit Rating
Short term Long term Rating agency

MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA VIS
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited Al+ AA VIS
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and availability of financing through banking arrangements. The following are the contractual
maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments, excluding the impact of netting

Carrying Contractual Maturity up to Maturity after
amount Maturity one year one year

December 31, 2021 Semmens Rupees-—---—--memameee ee>

Long term financing 63,073,948 63,073,948 10,091,744 52,982,204
Trade and other payables 112,849,878 112,849,878 112,849,878 -

June 30, 2021

Long term financing 68,119,820 68,119,820 10,091,744 58,028,076
Trade and other payables 102,185,115 102,185,115 102,185,115 -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in prices and interest rates will affect the Company's income.

The Companyis exposed to interest rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term borrowings with floating interest rates.

Noe®



Carrying amount
Dec, 31 June, 30

2021 2021
Rupees Rupees

Variable rate instrument
Financial liabilities
- KIBOR based 63,073,948 68,119,820

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity
and the profit after tax by Rs. 0.63 million (2021: Rs. 0.68 million) with the corresponding effect on the
carrying amount of the liability. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency
rates, remain constant.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating activities (when
revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional
currency). As at December 31, 2021, there are no financial assets and liabilities exposed to

Falr value offinancial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company has adopted the amendments to IFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the
balance sheet at fair value. This amendment requires fair value measurement disclosures using following
three level fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value of
financial instruments.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Levell that are observable for the asset or liability,
eitherdirectly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). The Company has no items to report in
this level.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company does not have any investment in any ofthe category.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capitalare as follows:

- The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

- The Company's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

- Consistently with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debtis calculated as total debt (as
shows in the balance sheet) less cash and bank balances. Adjusted capital comprises of net debts and all
components of equity (i.e. share capital and unappropriated profit).

The Company's strategy is to maintain its debt-to-adjusted capital ratio up to 10%. The debt-to-adjusted
capital ratios at December 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Dec, 31 June, 30
2021 2021

Rupees Rupees

Total debts 63,073,948 68,119,820
Total equity 1,292,471,985 1,231,138,215

Adjusted capital 1,355,545,933 1,299,258,035

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio % 4.65% 5.24%

The Company's liquidity improved during the period/year, therefore no further debts were obtained.

Dec, 31 June, 30
PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2021 2021

—-— Kilowatt-hour —--
Generation capacity:
Unit 1 27.74 27.74
Unit 2 233.40 233.40

Actual production:
Unit 1 11.43 23.27
Unit 2 0.24 0.54

The under utilization of generation capacity is due to high price of furnace oil and lack of demand by
spinning and weaving unit because they have their own power generation plant on gas. High prices of
furnace oil increase cost of production of electricity. Management compare the cost of production and
decides which source provide less costly electricity to the weaving and spinning units.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There'is no financial impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities or items of
income and expenses, as required under relevant accounting and reporting standards.

The management has evaluated and concluded that there is no material implications of COVID 19 that
require specific disclosure in the financial statements.

poe



32 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on April 05, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the

company.

33 GENERAL

~The statement of profitor loss and other comprehensive income , statement of cash flows and statement of
changes in equity for the period from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021 (i.e. six months) does not

represents the full year of operation, therefore the comparatives are not comparable.

-Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED-
UNIT 01, KOTRI

Special purpose statement of assets and
contingent liability of undertaking

As at December 31, 2021
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I. I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi 74000,
Pakistan.

Phone: +92-21-32411268
+92-21-32427857

Fax:  +92-21-32427857
Web:  www.adaco.com.pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Statement of Assets and Contingent Liability of
BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED as at December 31, 2021, together with the notes thereon (here-
in-after referred as Special Purpose Statement of Assets and Contingent Liability of Undertaking or
the Statement).

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Statement of Asset and Contingent
Liability of Undertaking

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement in accordance with

the basis of preparation mentioned in note 2 to the statement, and for such internal control as

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement that is free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement are free from material misstatement. An audit

involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

Statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and

presentation of the Statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates, if any, made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Statement. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Statement are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of
preparation mentioned in note 2 to the Statement.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to notes 1.2 and 1.3 to the Statement which
describes the basis of accounting and the fact that the undertaking is not operated as separate entities.

Hoe
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A. D. Akhawala & Co.
Chartered Accountants

e statement has been prepared for assets along with the associated contingent liability in connection
with the envisaged Scheme of Arrangement between Bhanero Textile Mills Limited and Bhanero
Energy Limited and their respective members. As a result, the statement and our report thereon may
not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors
of Bhanero Energy Limited in connection with the Envisaged Scheme and should not be used by
parties other than the Board of Directors of Bhanero Energy Limited

The Statement does not comprise a full set of financial statements prepared according to the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

SP n ’ Ave wll
A.D. Akhawala & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Name of the Engagement Partner: Abdullah Dawood Akhawala
Karachi, Dated: April 05, 2022

Affiliate with
Garrison Accountants
An audit and accounting firm based in the United Kingdom Audit. Tax.Consulting, Financial Advisory.



BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED- UNIT 01, KOTRI
SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

OF UNDERTAKING
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Note Rupees

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 94,574,242

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 4 14,433,859

TOTAL ASSETS 109,008,101

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 5

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Special Purpose Statement of Assets and
Contingent Liability of Undertaking.

Fides -

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR



BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED-UNIT 01, KOTRI

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY OF
UNDERTAKING

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2021

1

3

INTRODUCTION

L1

12

L3

Bhanero Energy Limited (the "Company") was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on January 02, 1994 under

the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The principal activity of the Company is to generate and supply electric power. The

registered office of the Company is situated at Umer House 23/1, Sector 23, S.M Farooq Road, Korangi Industrial area,
Karachi. The captive power plants, Bhanero Energy Limited Unit-01, is located at Kotri in the province of Sindh and

supply electricity exclusively to Bhanero Textile Mills Limited, Kotri.

Bhanero Textiles Mills Limited (BTML) will acquire unit 1, Kotri of Bhanero Energy Limited, comprising primarily of
the power generation facility of Bhanero Energy Limited at Kotri, in the province of Sindh along with the gas
connection and the claims and ongoing proceedings in respect of gas infrastructure cess, (BEL Unit 1) through a scheme

of arrangement, subject to obtaining necessary corporate and regulatory approvals, and the sanction of the scheme of
arrangement by the Honorable High Court of Sindh. In consideration, BTML will allot and issue the shareholders of
Bhanero Energy Limited shares in BTML in proportion to their respective shareholding in BEL, and the number of
shares to be allotted will be calculated on the basis of the book value of the BEL Unit 1 as per these special purpose
Statement of Asset and Contingent Liability of the Undertaking- Bhanero Energy Limited- Unit 01.

The Special Purpose Statement of Assets and Contingent Liability of the Undertaking- Bhanero Energy Limited-Unit

01, Kotri (herein after referred as "the Statement”) have been prepared for determining the assets along with the

associated contingent liability in connection with the envisaged scheme of arrangement between Bhanero Textile Mills

Limited and Bhanero Energy Limited and their respective members (the Envisaged Scheme).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1

2.12

2.1.3

.
The Statement has been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan in so
far as they relate to the recognition and measurement criteria but without incorporating the corresponding figures and

disclosures and using the same accounting policies as were used for the preparation of the latest audited financial

statements of the Company for the period from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and

directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

The Envisaged Scheme, where assets and associated contingent liability have been determined on the basis of their book
value as per the audited financial statements as at December 31, 2021.

The Statement do not comprise of full set of financial statements prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
As at December 31, 2021

Cost Accumulated Net book value
depreciation

< Rupees >

Buildings on freehold land

-factory 2,962,684 2,740,152 222,532

Plant and machinery 153,016,322 59,430,587 93,585,735

Electric installation and equipment 5,425,604 4,922,512 503,093

Furniture and fixtures 403,321 325,952 77,369
Gas fittings 2,047,457 1,861,944 185,513

163,855,388 69,281,147 94,574,242

Se,
’





BHANERO ENERGY LIMITED
SPECIAL PURPOSE STA TEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF UNDERTAKING

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Long term deposits ~~

CURRENTASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools

Loan, advances other receivables and prepayments
Other financial assets
Sales tax refundable
Trade debt
Incometax refundable -
Bank balances-in curfent accotints

-

TOTAL ASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Capital reserve
Unappropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing
Deferred liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Accrued interest/mark-up
Current portion of long term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT

TOTAL EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

CHIEF EXECUTI VE OFFICER

AAa 0Wu
A. D.-Akhawala & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Abdullah Dawood Akhawala
Karachi, Dated: April 05, 2022

te

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

BEL ~~ BEL. BlUnit 01 (Kotri) Unit 02(Sheikhupura) =: Total :

(Undertaking) - (Retained Undertaking) :

Rupees -. Rupees Rupees -

94,574,242 © 507,05924 | 691,870,166coe 465,526,032 465,526,032
- : 2484127 2,484,127

94,574,242 1,065,306,083 °1,159,880,325

14,433,859 165,028,566 179,462,425

- 3,303,958 3,303,958

- 3,300,000 3,300,000- 13,682,547 || ~~ 13,682,547

- : 98,402,756 [| 98,402,756 |

- ~ 15,973,371 15973371 |

: - 345,620,705 [1 345,620,705
14,433,859 645,311,904 659,745,763

109,008,101 1,710,617,987 1,819,626,088

. 24636500 24,636,500
- 60,340,000 ©. 60,340,000
a © 1,207,495,485° 1,207,495,485
= 1,292,471,985 1,292,471,985

. 52,982,204 52,982,204
- 350,820,902© 350,820,902

- 403,803,106 403,803,106

- 112,849,878 [| 112,849,878

: ; 409,375 [| 409,375

- 10,091,744 10,091,744

- 123,350,998 123,350,998

TTT 1819626088 1819,626,088

DIRECTOR



BHANERO TEXTILE MILLS LTD

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2021

MUSHTAQ & CO.
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MUSHTAQ & CO. LEAN
ICHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS leading edge alliance
19-B, Block G, Gulberg-III, Lahore. Tel: 042-35858624-6 innovation + quality + excellence

Email: audit. lhr@mushtaqandco.com Member firm

{rdependvon waditor 's ceport ic ihe wicvhers of Bioasers Jextife Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Statements

pinich

We have audited the annexed special purpose financial statements of Bhanero Textile Mills Limited, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the period
from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes ofthe audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the period from July 01, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Bases tor Opinica

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the international Lthics Standards Board for Accoumants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

comphasis of Siaer Puragranit

We draw attention to note 2.2 of the special purpose financial statements which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial statement has been prepared in pursuance of an arrangement between the
shareholders of the Company and Bhenro Energy Limited Unit 1, as a result the financial statement and our
report thereon may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is solely for the use of the board of
directors ofthe company and should not be used by the parties other than the board of directors. Our opinion
is not modified in respect ofthis matter.

i Intormatior Other than the Financial Statements and Awiditor'- Keporr Theres

Management "5 responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this
auditor’s report is information included in the annua! report, but does not include the financial statements of
the company and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion onthe financial statements does not cover the other inforination and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion there on.

¥

[Head Office: 407, Commerce Centre, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi. Tel: 021-32638521-4 Fax: 021-32639843 Email: audit. khi@mushtagandco.com
Islamabad Office: 313, First Floor, Millennium Heights, F-11/1, Islamabad. Tel: 051-2224970
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USHTAQ & CO.
HARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

9-B, Block G, Gulberg-III, Lahore. Tel: 042-35858624-6 innovation + quality + excellence
il: audit. ]hr@mushtagandco.com Member firm

leading edge alliance

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Maniageiment and Berd of Directors forthe Financial Staremeniy

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

agditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as

- fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding ofinternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
thar are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Llivaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report 10 the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

b Office: 407, Commerce Centre, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi. Tel: 021-32638521-4 Fax: 021-32639843 Email: audit khi@mushtagandco.com
Islamabad Office: 313, First Floor, Millennium Heights, F-11/1, Islamabad. Tel: 051-2224970



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Note Dec 31, 2021
Rupees

Sales 27 7,723,854,042
Cost of sales 28 5,965,907,639
Gross profit 1,757,946,403

Other income 29 218,829,103
1,976,775,506

Distribution cost 30 165,016,289
Administrative expenses 31 100,210,919
Other operating expenses 32 104,303,894
Finance cost 33 64,220,818

433,751,920
Profit before tax 1,543,023,586

Taxation 34 108,338,814

Profit after taxation for the period 1,434,684,772

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 35 478.23

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

TL oJ C RD wi
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Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Profit for the period after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive Income for the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Pr
(

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECT

Half Year Ended

Dec 31, 2021

——————
Rupees

1,434,684,772

1,434,684,772—_—e—
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Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Balance as at 1st July, 2021 30,000,000

Final dividend for the year ended June
30, 2021 at the rate of PKR 71.50 per
share -

Comprehensive income
Profit after taxation -

Other comprehensive income -

Balance as at Dec 31, 2021 30,000,000

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Revenue Reserves
Share capital General reserve Unappropriated Total

profits
Rupees

6,300,000,000 433,063,770 6,763,063,770

- (214,500,000) {214,500,000)

- 1,434,684,772 1,434,684,772

- - 1,434,684,772 1,434,684,772

6,300,000,000 1,653,248,542
~~

7,983,248,542

TEmon =CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Provision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Infrastructure fee - ETO
Infrastructure cess - Gas
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance cost

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Inventories

Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits
Other receivables
Sales tax refundable

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated by operations

Finance cost paid
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid
Income taxes paid
Long term deposits

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Additions in property, plant and equipment

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repaymentof long term financing
Proceeds from long term financing
Short term borrowings - net
Dividend paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

_
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

IC =DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE

Dec 31, 2021
Rupees

1,543,023,586

131,980,000
37,080,000
28,441,485

(188,385,561)
64,220,818

1,616,360,328

(1,865,560,545)
(206,999,434)

(33,446,968)
(76,903,246)

(2,696,329)
(235,302,383)

(2,420,908,905)
240,398,726

(564,149,851)
(47,694,610)
(14,098,284)
(76,398,344)
(13,062,000)

(151,253,238)

(715,403,089)

243,852,480
(2,708,254,984)

(2,464,402,504)
-

(94,470,617)
2,012,198,460

31,297,475
(214,122,067)

1,734,903,251

(1,444,902,342)
1,739,116,221

294,213,879

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Bhanero Textile Mills Limited (the Company} was incorporated on 30™ March 1980 as a public limited

company in Pakistan under repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 now the Companies Act, 2017 and is

quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchanges Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at Umer
House, 23/1, Sector 23, S. M. Farooq Road, Korangi Industrial Area Karachi.

1.2 The company is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of yarn and fabric. The production
facilities are located at Kotri, District Dadu in the province of Sindh and Feroze Wattwan, District
Sheikhupura in the province of Punjab.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
These special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan in so far as they relate to the recognition and measurement
criteria but without incorporating the correspondence figures and disclosures and using the same
accounting policies as were used for the preparation of the latest audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2021. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 These special purpose audited financial statements are prepared for the period from 1 July 2021 to 31
December 2021 for the purpose of scheme of arrangement proposed to merge Bhanero Energy
Limited(BEL) Unit 1 with and into Bhanero Textile Mills Limited (BTML) through the said scheme of

arrangement, the draft of which has been approved by the Board of Directors, to be entered into
between BEL and BTML, subject to finalization of the scheme and fulfilment of necessary legal facilities.
As a result, these special purpose financial statements may not be suitable for any other purpose. Our

report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors in connection with thé above mentioned
purpose and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the Board of Directors.

2.3 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for certain
financial instruments at fair value and employees retirement benefits at present value. In these financial

statements, except for cash flow statements, all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest
Rupee.



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

2.5 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a

. significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 45 to these financial

statements.



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

31-Dec-21

3 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL Rupees

31-Dec-21

1,762,500 Ordinary shares of PKR 10 each allotted for 17,625,000

consideration - fully paid in cash

1,237,500 Ordinary shares of Rs 10. each allotted as bonus 12,375,000

shares
3,000,000 30,000,000

3.1
Associated company holds 500,600 (2021: 500,600} ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in the company.

3.2 The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions to them including dividend and other

entitlements in the form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the company. All shares

carry "one vote” per share without restriction. There is no movement in share capital during the

Period.

4 RESERVES
General reserve - Revenue reserve

' 6,300,000,000

6,300,000,000

31-Dec-21
. :

Note
5 Long term financing - secured Rupees

Long term loans 5.1 2,666,565,469

Less: current maturity shown under current liabilities (234,726,083)

2,431,839,386

Total R f
5.1 Lendor 31-12-21 ot9 ate o Number of instalments

Interest Security
Facility||Interest payable

Rupees

Long Term Loans

Bank Al 21,059,375 27.6M [SBP LTFF|32 equal quarterly Hypothecation

Habib rate + installments commenced charge on plant
2.4% from February 2019 and and machinery of

ending on 20 January 2028 Quarterly PKR 54 million of
unit lll located at
Ferrozwatton,
Sheikhupura-

17,504,000|17.5M [SBP LTFF [32 equal quarterly ererate + installments commenced
’

3.5% from 22 July 2022 and
ending on 22 April 2030 Quarterly

38,563,375



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Ri

Lendor 31-12-21 Total ate of Number of instalments
Interest Security

Facility||Interest payable

MCB Bank 529,682,033 900M |SBP LTFF|32 equal quarterly
Limited rate + installments commenced

2.4% from 30 April 2019 and
. Quarterly

ending on 06 February 2030

359,106,000 400M |SBP LTFF

rate +

2.4% 32 equal quarterly
installments commenced Quarter!

Hypothecation
from 06 May 2022 and ¥ charge on plant
ending on 07 February 2030 and machinery of

PKR 1,351 million
of unit Hl located at

47,467,526 65M [SBP LTFF|32 equal quarterly Ferrozwatton,
rate + installments commenced Sheikhupura-
2.4% from 19 February 2022 and Quarterly Faisalabad Road, -

ending on 13 November Sheikhupura.
2029

31,347,680 900M |DF 3M 32 equal quarterly
Kibor rate| instaliments commenced
+0.4% from 26 July 2019 and

. Quarterly
ending on 07 August 2027

967,603,239
SBP LTFF 08 equal quarterly Ranking Charge
Payment instaliments commenced over current
of wages from 01 january 2021 and assets of unit |

Bank Alfalah
105,178,906  215.4M and ending on 01 October 2022 Quarterly |ocated at Kotri

Limited salaries x

’

0.75%
Sindh to the

127% extent of PKR. 352
million.

Faysal Bank 1,116,167,584 1600M [SBP TERF|32 equal quarterly
Limited rate + installments commenced

1.60% from 26 April 2023 and Hypothecation
. Quarterly

ending on 31 March 2031 charge over plant
and machinery of
PKR 2,267 million

113,430,613 113M |SBP LTFF|32 equal quarterly of unit lll located
rate + installments commenced at Ferrozwatton,
2.6% from 14 April 2024 and Quarterly Sheikhupura-

ending on 14 January 2031 Faisalabad Road,
Sheikhupura.

1,229,598,197
32 equal quarterly

orallments Bn Hypothecation

National
SBP TERF ron !

ul eM 2 charge over fixed

Bank Limited
325,621,752 2700M rate + oa ing on

31
Marc

Quarterly assets of PKR
an Himite 1.25% 3,600 million of

BTML

2,666,565,469



shanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

31-Dec-21

6 Long term payables Note Rupees

Infrastructure fee payable - ETO 6.1 161,993,443

Infrastructure cess payable - Gas 6.2 65,547,955

227,541,398

6.1 Movement in net liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Balance at beginning of the year 133,551,958

Accrued for the period 37,986,053

Paid during the period (9,544,568)

Balance at the end of the period/year 161,993,443

sindh Infrastructure Cess was levied by Excise and Taxation Officer ['ETO"] Government of Sindh on movement of imported goods

entering the Sindh Province from outside Pakistan and Punjab Infrastructure Tax levied by ETO Government of Punjab on movement of

imported goods entering the Punjab Province from outside Pakistan. The Company filed petitions in Sindh High Court and Lahore High

Court against the levy. Sindh High Court decided the case against the Company and directed to pay the outstanding amount to Excise

and Taxation Department. The Company has filed petitions vide civil appeal 853,849,957 of 2021 in Supreme Court of Pakistan end and

obtained stay on the recovery of these levies. During the pendency offinal judgement on this, the Honorable Courts granting stay have

directed the petitioners to arrange bank guarantees for the outstanding amount in favour of ETO. The company has provided bank

guarantees amounting to 31 Dec, 2021 PKR 168.895 Million in respect of unpaid infrastructure fee.

6.2 Movement in liability recognized in the statement of financial position 31-Dec-21
Note Rupees’

Balance at beginning of the year 65,547,955

Accrued for the period -

Paid during the period -

Balance at the end of the period/year 65,547,955

The Company vide petition 1234/2021 filed before the High Court of Sindh challenged the recovery of GIDC installments. The High

Court of Sindh vide its order dated 22 November 2020 has suspended the recovery of GIDC installments. No further date is fixed for

hearing. Further, the Company vide petition 1848/2021 dated 30 August 2021 filed before the High Court of Sindh challenged the levy

of GIDC on the ground of the Government's failure to comply with the Supreme Court's judgment dated 13 August 2020 in relation to

commencement of work on specified projects.
31-Dec-21

7 Staff retirement benefits Rupees

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 7.1 204,843,286
204,843,286

71 Movement in net liability recognized in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefits obligation - at the beginning of the year 181,861,570

Charged to profit and loss account and comprehensive income 7.2 37,080,000

Benefits paid during the period .

(14,098,284)

Present value of defined benefits obligation - at the end ofthe period/year 204,843,286

7.2 Amount charged to profit and loss account / other comprehensive income .
Current service cost 27,986,922

Interest cost 9,093,079

Remeasurement charged to other comprehensive income -

37,080,000

7.3 The company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its permanent employees who have completed

minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. Provisions are made annuatly to cover the obligation

under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and are charged to income. Actuarial valuation has been carried out by

independent valuer as at June 30, 2021 using the projected unit credit method assuming a discount rate of 10% per annum and

expected rate of increase in salaries at 9% per annum.

7.4 There is no unrecognized actuarial loss / gain.

1.5 Historical information 2021
Rupees

Present value of defined benefits obligation 181,861,570

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 8,712,867



Textile Mills Limited

tothe Financial Statements
Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

76 Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions given above. The below information summarizes how the defined benefit

obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result of change in respective assumptions by 100 basis

point.

Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption

Discount rate LL oo (8,864,105) 9,983,021

Expected rate of increase in future salary
: 9,983,021 (9,019,001)

11 The expected gratuity expense comprising of service cost and net interest for the period ending 30th June 2022 works out to PKR 37,080,000

million.
.

18 The average duration of defined benefit obligation is 6 years.

;

31-Dec-21

Deferred Taxation . Le Rupees

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences Sh Co 8.1 208,559,946

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences
’

So Co (43,273,052)
165,286,894

81 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liability / (assets) arising in respect of:

30.Dec, 2021

Recognized in

As at Recognized in other As at
July 01 2020||profit and lossJ]comprehensive[|June 30,2021

- . income
Taxable temporary differences Co

Accelerated tax depreciation on owned assets [225,786,808 || (17,226,462)| . | 208,559,946
225,786,408 - - 208,559,946

Deductible temporary differences :

Provision for employee benefit (40,709,894) 9,373,977 - (31,335,917)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (19,789,620) 7,852,485 - {11,937,135

(60,499,514) 17,226,462 - (43,273,052),
165,286,894 165,286,894 : - 165,286,894

Accelerated tax depreciation on owned assets
i

208,559,946

Deductible temporary differences }

Provision for employee benefit {31,335,917)

Finance lease - -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (11,937,135)

(43,273,052)

165,286,894

811 Deferred taxation has been recognized as follows

Recognized through OCI So : -

8.12 Revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxation under the final tax regime, while the remaining portion of revenue attracts
assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. Deferred tax is provided for only that portion of timing differences that represent income

taxable under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that proportion of total timing differences that the local

sales, other than the indirect exports taxable under section 154 (3) of the Ordinance, bear to the totalsales revenue based on historical and future

trends. Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% of the timing differences so determined based on taxrates notified by the Government of Pakistan

for future tax years.



ro Textile Mills Limited

tothe Financial Statements
The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

31-Dec-21

Deferred Government grant Rupees

Deferred Government grant Co 9.1 482,031,299

482,031,299

91 Deferred Revenue - Govt Grant

Balance at beginning of year - oC :
: 35,149,787

During the period Cy 550,799,920

Amortization during the period CT (20,299,757)
Co :

:
565,649,950

Less: current portion so (83,618,651)

Balance at the end of the period/year Co © 482,031,299

9.1.1 The Company obtained term loan / SBP COVID-19 relief facility under "SBP refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries" introduced by

Government of Pakistan in order to prevent entities from laying-off employees during COVID-19 cutbreak. The Company obtained Rs. 215.408
million, for paying salaries for the months from April 2020 to September 2020. The loan is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments, starting
from January 2021. This long term financing facility is secured by way of hypothecation charge over current assets of the Company. The facility
carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate (currently 0%) plus bank’s spread of 0.75% per annum starting from the date of disbursement
and is payable in arrears on quarterly basis. The loan has been measured at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9 ‘(Financial Instruments) using
market rates at SBP approval dates of each tranche. The difference between fair value of loan and loan proceeds has been recognized as deferred

grant as per requirements of IAS 20 {Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance) and as per Circular 11/2020
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

)

9.12 The Company entered into long-term loan agreement with Faysal Bank Limited amounting to PKR. 102. 333 million (June 2021: 102.33) million
under "SBP Temporary Economic Refinance Facility" for additions of new plant & machinery. The facility carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP) rate 1% plus bank's spread of 0.60% per annum starting from the date of disbursement and is payable in arrears on quarterly basis. The loan
has been measured at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) using market rates at SBP approval dates of each tranche.
The difference between fair value of loan and loan proceeds has been recognized as deferred grant as per requirements of 1AS 20 (Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance) and as per selected opinion issued in November 2020 by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

9.13 The company obtained different long-term facilities during the period under the Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) of the State Bank

of Pakistan from two commercial banks. The loans are repayable in quarterly installments over a period of ten years which include a grace period
of two years and are secured by way of hypothecation charge over specific plant and machinery of the Company. The facility carries markup
ranging from 1.60% to 2.25%. The loans have been measured at its fair value in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) using market rates
at SBP approval dates of each tranche. The difference between fair value of loan and loan proceeds has been recognized as deferred grant as per
requirements of IAS 20 (Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance) and as per selected opinion issued in

November 2020 by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

; Co 31-Dec-21
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES : Cl Note Rupees
Creditors co 10.1 573,043,478
Advance from customers & others Loe 10.2 21,206,507
Accrued liabilities . :

* 275,456,108.
Workers' Profit Participation Fund oo 103 74,108,523
Workers Welfare Fund ' : 143,890,378
Others : Co 14,644,044

1,102,349,038

101 These include amounts due to following related party in the normal course of business.

Name of Company Relationship ;

Bhanero Energy Limited Associated Company : Co 98,402,756

102 Advance received from customer is recognised as revenue when the performance obligation in accordance with the policy is satisfied. Revenue for

an amount of Rs.8,552,740 has been recognised in current period in respect of advances from customersat the beginning of period.

31-Dec-21
103 Workers’ profit participation fund Note Rupees

Opening balance Co 116,211,377
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business

}

) 10.3.1 9,926,534
. Lo 126,137,911

Paid to the fund (125,472,810)
: os 665,101

Allocation for the period 32 73,443,422
74,108,523

103.1 Interest on workers’ profit participation fund has been provided @ 536.25% per annum.



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
for The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

11 UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Unclaimed dividend 1,720,632

12 ACCRUED MARKUP / INTEREST

Mark-up accrued on secured:
-long term financing 21,539,187

- short term borrowings 1,822,204

23,361,391

12.1 During the period company has capitalized the markup of Rs. Nil.

13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

from banking companies
Short term loans / Running finance 13.2 31,297,475

31,297,475

13.1 The aggregate approved short term borrowing facilities amounting to PKR 8.94 billion.

13.2 These facilities are subject to mark-up ranging from 1 to 3 month KIBOR + spreads between 0.1% to 2% per annum payable quarterly.

These are secured against hypothecation charge on current assets of the Company.

31-Dec-21

14 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS Note Rupees

Long-term financing 5 234,726,083
Deferred govt. grant 9.1 83,618,651

318,344,734

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

15.1 Contingencies
151.1 The Company has issued post dated cheques amounting to PKR 801,158,230 (2021: PKR 688,661,450) in favour of Collector of Customs

in lieu of custom levies against various statutory notifications. The post dated cheques furnished by the company are likely to be

released after the fulfilment of term of related SROs.

151.2 Bank guarantee issued to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Company Limited amounting to PKR 242.82 Million and Pakistan State Oil PKR 2.25

million.

151.3 In addition to above mentioned guarantees there are guarantees which are disclosed in note (8.1) .

151.4 The Company vide petition ICA 239111 of 2018 filed before the High Court of Lahore challenged the recovery of Cotton Cess against the

judgment passed in writ petition No. 311009 of 2016 and writ petition No. 214708 of 2018 respectively. Presently the recovery of cess

has been stayed by the High Court of Lahore. No further date is fixed for hearing.

15.1.5 Bills discounted 481,946,001

15.2 Commitments
15.2.1 Letter of credit (for store, raw material and fixed assets) 5,050,583,654

152.2 Commitments for capital expenditure 560,430,450

15.2.3 The Company has entered into ljarah arrangements for vehicles with Meezan Bank Limited. These arrangements have been made for

the period of five years. Such arrangements carry Bench Mark Rate of 0.5% per annum over the 3 Month KIBOR. The rate would be

fixed for the first three months on the last working day before the first disbursement date and subsequently on each last working day

immediately preceding the beginning of next three months. Lease rentals shall be revised in accordance with the change in KIBOR to

appropriately reflect the Bench Mark. Future ljarah payments due under these arrangements at the period end are as follows:

Not fater than one year 28,486,146

Later than one year & not later than five years 110,497,204

Later than five years 132,161
139,115,511
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

"to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report or Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in

agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the

purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Zahid Hussain Zahid, FCA.

LoMaly
Chartered accountants

KARACHI
Date: 18" April, 2022
UDJX: AR202110043b3rWRY 5pt

pad Office: 407, Commerce Centre, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi. Tel: 021-32638521-4 Fax: 021-32639843 Email: audit. khi@mushtaqandco.com
Islamabad Office: 313, First Floor, Millennium Heights, F-11/1, Islamabad. Tel: 051-2224970



tBhanero Textile Mills Limited

Statement of Financial Position
LAs at Dec 31, 2021

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital
6,000,000 (2021: 6,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Reserves

Unappropriated profit

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing - secured
Long term payables
Staff retirement benefits
Deferred taxation
Deferred government grant

v

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued markup / interest
Short term borrowings - secured
Current portion of long term financing
Provision for taxation - net

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

[TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

Wo

NOY

Wn

10
11
12
13

14

15

Dec 31, 2021
Rupees

60,000,000

30,000,000
6,300,000,000
1,653,248,542
7,983,248,542

2,431,839,386
227,541,398
204,843,286
165,286,894
482,031,299

3,511,542,263

1,102,349,038
1,720,632

23,361,391
31,297,475

318,344,734
26,543,457

1,503,616,727

12,998,407,532

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress

Long term deposit

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Income tax refundable
Sales tax refundable
Bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

e annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shon
ICHIEF EXECUTIVE &=DIRECTOR

Note

16

17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24

25

26

Dec 31, 2021
Rupees

2,742,204,376

2,871,671,694

41,621,816
5,655,497,886

107,424,697
4,525,320,782
1,835,119,346

59,323,393
214,069,936

8,930,556

298,507,057
294,213,879

7,342,909,646

12,998,407,532

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ~
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ghanero Textile Mills Limited aNotes to the Financial Statements ie
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021 :

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST DEPRECIATION val ¢
As at July 01, Additions / As at Dec 31, As at July 01, For the Tra

Book value asa
T nsfersPARTICULARS 2021 (disposals)

ransfers
2021 2021 Period (disposer) Dec31,2021|Rate

Rupeesa————
Company owned

Leasehold land 433,414 - - 433,414 - - “ 433,414  -

Freehold land 660,724,005 1,434,000 - 662,158,005 - - . 662,158,005  -

Building on leasehold land 174,351,730 - - 174,351,730 120,239,643 2,748,571 - 122,988,214 51,363,516 10%
Building on freehold land 473,447,260 - - 473,447,260 290,751,909 9,134,768 - 299,886,677 173,560,583 10%

Office premises on leasehold land 29,894,675 - - 29,894,675 18,853,937 278,398 - 19,132,335 10,762,340 5%

Office premises on freehold [and 112,306,388 - - 112,306,388 49,336,066 1,574,258 - 50,910,324 61,396,064 5%

Plant and machinery 4,287,400,716 ~ - 3,994,605,530  2,480,566,504 99,249,757 - 2,342,123,442 1,652,482,088 10%
- (292,795,186) - - - - (237,692,819) - -

Equipments and other assets 157,436,448 - - 157,436,448 127,077,475 8,124,853 - 135,202,328 22,234,120 Three years
Electric installation 78,506,475 - - 78,506,475 44,173,389 1,679,752 - 45,853,141 32,653,334 10%

Gas Line & Pipe 7,180,289 - - 7,180,289 5,721,997 72,914 - 5,794,911 1,385,378 10%

Cooling towers 5,223,570 - - 5,223,570 4,126,388 54,859 - 4,181,247 1,042,323 10%

Ventilation system 2,094,912 - - 2,094,912 1,271,516 41,170 - 1,312,686 782,226 10%

Yoo Boiler 24,032,925 - - 24,032,925 15,457,966 428,748 - 15,886,714 8,146,211 10%
or : Factory equipments 5,650,258 - - 5,650,258 5,072,197 26,522 - 5,098,719 551,539 10%

- Furniture and fixtures - Factory 6,458,676 - - 6,458,676 5,020,480 71,910 - 5,092,390 1,366,286 10%
Office equipments 29,257,136 - - 29,257,136 21,001,461 412,784 - 21,414,245 7,842,891 10%
Furniture and fixtures - Office 2,657,972 - - 2,657,972 1,349,373 65,430 - 1,414,803 1,243,169 10%
Vehicles 119,185,984 16,256,945 - 131,542,836 74,262,182 8,015,306 - 78,741,947 52,800,889 20%

- (3,900,093) - - - - (3,535,541) - -

Dec 31, 2021 6,176,242,833 17,690,945 - 5,897,238,499  3,264,282,483 131,980,000 3,155,034,123 2,742,204,376
: - (296,695,279) - - - - (241,228,360) - .

5
:
¥

i



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Equipment and other assets includes assets amounting to PKR 15,710,241 which has been fully depreciated.16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

The depreciation charge for the period/year has been allocated as follows:

Costof sales
Administrative expenses

Dec 31, 2021

Rupees

28 123,480,000
318500000

Freehold lands of the Company are located at Feroze Wattoan Sheikhupura with an area of 880 kanal 8 marla, at Gajumata Kasur 48 Kanal and Leasehold land are located at Kotri with an area of 104 Kanal .

particulars of buyer

DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Proceeds from Gain on

oo Cost Accumulated Written down disposal of disposal of Mode of
Description depreciation value property, plant|property, plant .

, disposaland equip and p
t

Rupees

Machinery

Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 15,383,583 12,449,665 2,933,918 12,446,084 9,512,166 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 22,973,004 18,593,213 4,375,791 18,774,382 14,394,591 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 23,170,068 18,749,565 4,420,503 18,830,888 14,410,385 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 30,764,606 24,946,981 5,817,625 25,196,459 19,378,834 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 30,628,514 24,838,364 5,790,150 25,291,034 19,500,884 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 46,324,771 37,636,494 8,688,277 38,006,083 29,317,806 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 61,713,473 50,140,048 11,573,425 51,632,350 40,058,925 Negotiation
Picanol looms OMP-800 340 CM used 61,837,167 50,338,489 11,498,678 52,525,200 41,026,522 Negotiation

292,795,186 237,692,819 55,102,367 242,702,480 187,600,113
Vehicles
Vehicle LEC-11-2061 941,900 842,450 99,450 300,000 200,550 Negotiation
Vehicle LEA-10-6259 1,443,630 1,335,744 107,886 350,000 242,114 Negotiation
Vehicle LEA-07-7637 627,250 602,360 24,890 200,000 175,110 Negotiation
VehicleLEC-12-6268 887,313 754,987 132,326 300,000 167,674 Negotiation

3,900,093 3,535,541 364,552 1,150,000 785,448

31-Dec-21 296,695,279 241,228,360 55,466,919 243,852,480 188,385,561

DeiraTrading Centre LLC . W.H No 6 Safetex, Paniwala Road AD IND Area
DeiraTrading Centre LLC . W.H No 6 Safetex, Paniwala Road AD IND Area
DeiraTrading Centre LLC . W.H No 6 Safetex, Paniwala Road AD IND Area
DeiraTrading Centre LLC . W.H No 6 Safetex, Paniwala Road AD IND Area
DeiraTrading Centre LLC . W.H No 6 Safetex, Paniwala Road AD IND Area
DeiraTrading Centre LLC . W.H No 6 Safetex, Paniwala Road AD IND Area
Green Forest General Trading , FZC,,BC 1301523 Ajman Free Zone, Ajman UAE

Green Forest General Trading , FZC,,BC 1301523 Ajman Free Zone, Ajman UAE

H.No 68-8 Railway Officer Colony Walton Lahore Cantt
Muhammad Altaf, H No 68-8 Railway Officer Colony, Walton, Lahore CNIC#35201-5100624-1
Ahmed Ali Tahir, H No.442/B-ViI,Church Raod, Sahiwal CNIC # 36502-6283126-5
Muhammad Altaf, H No 68-B Railway Officer Colony, Walton, Lahore CNiC#35201-5100624-1



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

17 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
31-Dec-21

As at Additions Transfers As at
July 01, 2021 Dec 31, 2021

PKR PKR PKR PKR

tand and building 73,051,623 436,010,342 - 509,061,965
Plant and machinery 107,474,275 2,246,996,119 -  2,354,470,394
Equipment and other assets - 7,007,918 - 7,007,918
Trial run expenses - 1,131,417 - 1,131,417

180,525,898 2,691,145,796 - 2,871,671,694

18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 31-Dec-21
Note Rupees

Lease liability 13,053,000
Electricity 28,107,540
Telephone 33,600
Others 18.1 427,676

41,621,816

18.1 Itincludes security deposit amounting to Rs. 20,000 given to Admiral (Private) Limited, an associated company, against rent of building.

31-Dec-21
19 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Rupees

Stores and spares 95,369,512
Packing material 12,055,185

107,424,697
19.1 No item of stores, spares and loose tools is pledged as security as at reporting date.

31-Dec-21
20 STOCK IN TRADE Rupees

Raw material 2,978,044,989
Work in process

’

259,428,187
Finished goods 800,595,088

Waste 2,485,062

4,525,320,782

20.1 No item of stock in trade is pledged as security as at reporting date.
31-Dec-21

21 TRADE DEBTS Note Rupees

Foreign - secured against letter of credit 350,334,354
Local - unsecured - considered good

.
1,484,784,992

Local - unsecured - considered doubtful 73,181,227
1,908,300,573

Allowance for ECL on trade debts 21.1 (73,181,227)
* 1,835,119,346

21.1 Particulars of allowance for ECL on trade debts
Balance at beginning of the year 83,553,311
Charge during the period 32 -

Allowance no longer required / recovered {10,372,084}

Balance at the end of the period/year 73,181,227

22 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances to:
Suppliers - Unsecured (considered good) 52,887,817
Employees - Secured (considered good) 5,511,979
Employees - Un-secured {considered doubtful) 1,165,000
L/C in transit 923,597

60,488,393
22.1 (1,165,000)

59,323,393

Provision for doubtful advances
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Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

31-Dec-21
22.1 Provision for doubtful advances Note Rupees

Balance at beginning of the year 1,165,000
Charge during the period .

Provision no longer required/ recovered -

Balance at the end of the period/year 1,165,000

23 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits against infrastructure fees 23.1 184,444,861

Prepaid expenses 23,232,125
Margin against letter of credit 6,392,950

214,069,936

23.1 Effective mark up rate on these deposits range from 5.5% to 8.25% per annum.
31-Dec-21

24 OTHER RECEIVABLES - UNSECURED Note Rupees

KMC refundable - Considered doubtful 680,624
Other receivables - Considered good 8,930,556

9,611,180
Provision for doubtful receivables (680,624)

8,930,556
25 SALES TAX REFUNDABLE }

Sales tax and federal excise duty refundable 298,507,057

Federal excise duty and 1% Special excise duty refundable - considered doubtful 3,006,390
Provision for non refundable (3,006,390)

298,507,057

2 BANK BALANCES

Balances with banks on:
Current accounts 290,817,604

Foreign currency account - current 2,838,112

294,213,879

31-Dec-21
27 SALES - NET Rupees

Export

Yarn 732,802,526
Fabric 752,775,738

. 1,485,578,264
Export Rebate 101,789

1,485,680,053

Local .
Yarn 5,191,251,276
Fabric 2,015,010,482
Cotton and polyester 297,797
Scrap 4,350,764
Waste and others 88,468,255

7,299,378,574
8,785,058,627

Discount (69,763)
Sales tax {1,061,134,822)

{1,061,204,585)

7,723,854,042

27.1 Export sales includes exchange gain of PKR 39.85 million.



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

31-Dec-21

28 COST OF SALES Note Rupees

Raw material consumed 28.1 5,035,245,933

Packing material consumed 54,584,326

Stores, spares and loose tools 105,204,415

Salaries, wages and benefits 28.2 439,994,177

Fees and subscription 710,699

Fuel, power and water 622,973,655

Insurance 16,816,465

Vehicle running and maintenance 5,839,779

Rent, rate and taxes 549,290

Repairs and maintenance 16,500,804

Communication 474,834

Traveling and conveyance 1,297,761

Depreciation
16.2 123,480,000

Others 1,617,761
6,425,289,899

Work in process
Opening stock 185,829,049

Closing stock
+ (259,428,187)

(73,599,138)

Cost of goods manufactured 6,351,690,761

Cost of raw material sold 28.3 254,527

Finished stocks

Opening stock 416,172,599

Finished goods purchases 869,902

Closing stock (803,080,150)
(386,037,649)

5,965,907,639

31-Dec-21
Note Rupees

28.1 Raw material consumed
Opening stock 2,057,407,190

Purchases - net 6,441,266,562
8,498,673,752

Cost of raw material sold (869,901)

Closing stock (3,462,812,445)

5,035,245,933

28.2 Salaries, wages and benefits includes employees benefits amounting to PKR 30,600,000.

28.3 Cost of cotton sold

Cost of purchases 254,527

Direct expenses . -

254,527

29 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Interest income 19,767,547

Gain on Sale of Investment
Exchange gain 303,911

Reversal of provision for ECL & advance 10,372,084
30,443,542

Income from other than financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16.4 188,385,561

Rental income -

188,385,561

218,829,103



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

31-Dec-21

30 DISTRIBUTION COST Note Rupees

Export

Freight on export sales 70,531,671

Commission on export sales 24,132,751

Export development surcharge 3,454,296

Others 791,582
98,910,300

Local
Salaries and wages 1,273,152

Freight on local sales 7,936,110

Commission on local sales 56,104,168

Quality claim -

Others 792,559
66,105,989

165,016,289

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors’ remuneration 37 10,800,000

staff salaries and benefits 31.1 : 49,656,755

Traveling, conveyance and entertainment 3,118,443

Printing and stationery 1,824,270

Communication 1,032,270

Vehicles running and maintenance 4,898,811

Legal and professional 2,041,725

Fee and subscription 4,713,859

Repair and maintenance 241,156

Depreciation 16.2 8,500,000

Rent, rates and utilities . 1,113,427

ljara lease rental 10,043,694

Others 2,226,509

100,210,919

31.1 Salaries, wages and benefits includes employees benefits amounting to PKR 6,480,000.

32 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 10.3 73,443,422

Workers' Welfare Fund 30,860,472

Allowance for ECL on trade debts 21.1 -

104,303,894
31-Dec-21

33 FINANCE COST - Note Rupees

Mark-up on:
- long-term financing 22,931,765

- short-term borrowings ° 2,408,423

-workers' profit participation fund 10.3 9,926,534
35,266,722

Bank charges and commission 2,191,409

Letter of credits discounting 26,762,687

64,220,818

31-Dec-21

Hu PROVISION FOR TAXATION Note Rupees

Current
"for the period 34.1 108,338,814

- for prior years -

108,338,814

Deferred - current period 8.1 -

108,338,814
34.1 Provision for current tax for the period has been made in accordance with section 18 and section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance

2001. Income tax assessment of company has been finalized upto tax year 2021.
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Shanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
fot The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share of the company which is based on;

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share

{net profit after tax for the period)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share

31-Dec-21
Rupees

478.23

1,434,684,772

31-Dec-21

3,000,000

gasic earnings per share have been computed by dividing earnings as stated above with weighted average number of ordinary shares.

Basic earnings per share Rupees 478.23

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments carrying options which would have an

impact on earnings per share when exercised.

NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period that may require any adjustment or disclosure in this financial report.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Director Executives
2021 2021 2021

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Remuneration 4,800,000 6,000,000 13,223,100

Perquisites - - 2.936.126
post employment benefits - - 1,101,925

4,800,000 6,000,000 17,261,151

Number of persons
1 1 10

37.1 In addition the Chief Executive, directors are provided with free use of Company maintained cars and telephone for business use.

37.2 No remuneration to non executive directors has been paid.
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Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Segment Analysis

The segment information for the reportable segments for the period ended 31" Dec 2021 is as follows:

Operating Results

Sales

Export sales
Local sales
Custom rebate
Inter-segment sales

Discount and sales tax
Regularity Duty
Discount
Sales tax

Net sales

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other operating income/(expense)

Distribution cost
Administrative cost

Operating result

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Inter-segment pricing

Note Spinning Weaving Total
31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21

732,802,526 752,775,738 1,485,578,264
5,278,485,599 2,020,892,975 7,299,378,574

- 101,789 101,789
230,375,865 - 230,375,865

6,241,663,990 2,773,770,502 9,015,434,492

(69,763) - (69,763)
(767,380,681) (293,754,141) (1,061,134,822)
(767,450,444) (293,754,141) (1,061,204,585)

5,474,213,546 2,480,016,361 7,954,229,907

4,098,597,005 2,097,686,499 6,196,283,504
1,375,616,541 382,329,862 1,757,946,403

21,708,338 197,120,765 218,829,103
1,397,324,879 579,450,627 1,976,775,506

114,458,786 50,557,503 165,016,289
81,500,681 18,710,238 100,210,919

195,959,467 69,267,741 265,227,208
1,201,365,412 510,182,886 1,711,548,298

31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21

8,519,586,879 3,924,621,844 12,444,208,723—554,198,809
—12,998,407,532

2,179,009,141 2,507,148,880 4,686,158,021
329,000,969

5,015,158,990

Transactions among the business segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation
methods.
There were no major customer of company which formed 10 percent or more of the company's revenue.

38.5 Geographic Information

The geographic information analyses the entity's revenue and non-current assets by the Company's country
of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue has been based



Shanero Textile Mills Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Bangladesh
Germany

Italy

Japan

Korea

Portugal

Other Countries
Pakistan

Export Rebate
Discount

Sales tax

385.1 Company do not have any non current assets outside Pakistan.

39 Reconciliation of reportable segment turnover, cost of sales, assets and liabilities

39.1 Turnover
Total turnover for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment turnover

Total turnover

39.2 Cost of sales
Total cost of sales for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Total cost of sales

39.3 Profit or loss
Total profit for reportable segments
Other operating expenses
Interest expense
Total profit before tax

39.4 Assets

Total assets for reportable segments
Taxation recoverable
Sales tax refundable
Trade deposits
Long term deposit
Total assets

39.5 Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Unclaimed dividends
Infrastructure fee
Taxation Payable

Sponsors loan
Deferred taxation
Total liabilities

31-Dec-21
Rupees

174,431,752
75,006,064

333,727,88%
236,980,805
130,208,918
413,475,379
121,747,458

7,299,378,574
8,784,956,839

101,789
(69,763)

(1,061,134,822)
7,723,854,042

31 Dec, 2021
Rupees

7,954,229,907
(230,375,865)

7,723,854,042

6,196,283,504
(230,375,865)

5,965,907,639

1,711,548,298
(104,303,894)

(64,220,818)
1,543,023,586

31 Dec,2021
Rupees

12,444,208,723

298,507,057
214,069,936

41,621,816
12,998,407,532

4,686,158,021
1,720,632

161,993,443
26,543,457

165,286,894
5,041,702,447



Bhanero Textile Mills Limited

: Notes to the financial statements
For The Half Year Ended Dec 31, 2021

Y

Note Spinning Weaving Total
31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21

40 Cost of sales
Raw material consumed 40.1 3,226,136,938 2,039,739,387 5,265,876,325
Packing material consumed 48,540,854 6,043,472 54,584,326
Stores and spare parts 61,753,150 43,451,265 105,204,415

Salaries, wages and benefits 329,361,872 110,632,305 439,994,177
Fees and subscription 30,540 680,159 710,699
Fuel, power and water

Inter-segment - - -

Others 434,249,984 188,723,671 622,973,655
434,249,984 188,723,671 622,973,655

Insurance 13,125,000 3,691,465 16,816,465
Vehicle running and maintenance 4,490,265 1,349,514 5,839,779
Rent,rates and taxes 485,070 64,220 549,290
Repair and maintenance 11,608,620 4,892,184 16,500,804
Communication 299,612 175,222 474,834
Travelling and conveyance and entertainment 965,571 332,190 1,297,761

Depreciation 82,680,000 40,800,000 123,480,000
Others 784,369 833,392 1,617,761

4,214,511,845 2,441,408,446 6,655,920,291
Work in process

Opening stock 77,390,972 108,438,077 185,829,049

Closing stock (97,754,871) (161,673,316) (259,428,187)
(20,363,899) (53,235,239) (73,599,138)

Cost of goods manufactured 4,194,147,946 2,388,173,207 6,582,321,153

Cost of raw material sold - 869,901 869,901

Finished stocks

Opening stock 154,921,274 261,251,325 416,172,599
Finished goods purchased -

Closing stock (250,472,215) (552,607,935) (803,080,150)
(95,550,941) (291,356,609) (386,907,550)

4,098,597,005 2,097,686,499 6,196,283,504

Note Spinning Weaving Total
31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21

40.1 Raw material consumed
1 Opening stock 1,829,830,055 227,577,135 2,057,407,190

Purchases

Inter-segment - 230,375,865 230,375,865
Others 4,496,988,107 1,944,278,455 6,441,266,562

4,496,988,107 2,174,654,320 6,671,642,427
Raw material sold - cotton - - -

Raw material sold - yarn - (869,901) (869,901)
Raw material sold - Impaired 254,527 - 254,527

Closing stock (3,101,190,278) (361,622,167) (3,462,812,445)
3,226,136,938 2,039,739,387 5,265,876,325
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40.2 Cost of raw material sold

a

a

Cost of purchase
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Loading and unloading
Insurance
Finance cost

Distribution cost
Export

Ocean freight and forwarding
Commission

Export development surcharge
Sales Promotion Expenses
Others

Local

Salaries and wages
inland transportation
Commission
Quality claim
Others

Note

Administrative expenses
Directors’ remuneration
Staff salaries and benefits
Traveling, conveyance and entertainment
Printing and stationery
Communication
Vehicles running and maintenance
Legal and professional
Auditors' remuneration
Fee and subscription
Repair and maintenance
Depreciation
Rent, rates and utilities
Donation
Others

- 869,901 869,901

- 869,901 869,901

40,831,206 29,700,465 70,531,671

17,346,775 6,785,976 24,132,751

1,431,434 2,022,862 3,454,296

428,974 362,608 791,582

60,038,389 38,871,911 98,910,300

356,068 917,084 1,273,152

7,936,110 - 7,936,110

45,466,383 10,637,785 56,104,168

661,836 130,723 792,559

54,420,397 11,685,592 66,105,989

114,458,786 50,557,503 165,016,289

Spinning Weaving Total

31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-21

10,800,000 - 10,800,000

36,423,575 13,233,180 49,656,755
1,727,134 1,391,309 3,118,443

1,183,442 640,828 1,824,270

1,004,021 28,249 1,032,270

3,918,742 980,069 + 4,898,811

1,419,000 622,725 2,041,725

4,690,324 23,535 4,713,859

241,156 - 241,156

7,300,000 1,200,000 8,500,000

1,113,427 - 1,113,427

1,636,166 590,343 2,226,509

81,500,681 18,710,238 100,210,919
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ALINSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Fair value of financial instruments
fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction. As at Dec

31,2021 the net fair value ofall financial instruments has been based on the valuation methodology outlined below:-

Long-term deposits
Long term deposits does not carry any rate of return. The fair value of it has been taken at book value as it is not considered materially different and readily

exchangeable.

Non-current liabilities

for all non-current liabilities the fair values have been taken at book values as these are not considered mat.

return and reprising profiles of similar non-current liabilities.

Other financial instruments

erially different based on the current market rates of

The fair values of all other financial instruments are considered to approximate their book values as they are short term in nature.

The analysis of yield / mark-up rate risk is as under:

Interest / Markup bearing

December-21
Non Interest / Markup bearing

Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity Effective .

Upto After Subtotal Upto After Subtotal Total Interest

One year One year One year One year Rate

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees %

assets ]

debts - - - 1,835,119,346 - 1,835,119,346 1,835,119,346

ind advances - - - 7,600,576 - 7,600,576 7,600,576

deposits 184,444,861 - 184,444,861 6,392,950 - 6,392,950 190,837,811 4.510 10.25

eivables - - - 8,930,556 - 8,930,556 8,930,556

d bank balances - - - 294,213,879 - 294,213,879 294,213,879

rm deposits - - - - 41,621,816 41,621,816 41,621,816

1 184,444,861 - 184,444,861  2,152,257,307 41,621,816 2,193,879,123 2,378,323,984

ol liabilities 0.75t0 3.50 and

financing 234,726,083 2,431,839,386 2,666,565,469 - - - 2,666,565,469 K|BOR + 0.40

d other payables 74,108,523 - 74,108,523  1,028,240,515 - 1,028,240,515 1,102,349,038

d mark-up / interest - - - 23,361,391 - 23,361,391 23,361,391

prm borrowings 31,297,475 - 31,297,475 - - 31,297,475 KIBOR+0.1t02

340,132,081 2,431,839,386 2,771,971,467  1,051,601,906 - 1,051,601,906 3,823,573,373

nce sheet gap (155,687,220) (2,431,839,386) (2,587,526,606) 1,100,655,401 41,621,816  1,142,277,217 (1,445,249,389)

les and commitments
bed cheques

801,158,230

pounted
481,946,001

pees (Note 6.1 and Note 15.1.2)
401,313,675

of credit
5,050,583,654

139,115,511

ncles and commitments
ed cheques

688,661,450

jounted
539,912,451

ees {Note 6.1 and Note 15.1.2)
368,863,537

of credit
5,105,556,165

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rate

charged on interest bearing liabilities. This can result in an increase in interest expense relative to financial borrowings or vice versa. The Company manages its risk

by interest rate swapping, maintaining a fair balance between interest rates
monetary financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective notes to the financial statements.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognize

< will affect the value of financial instruments. Changes in interest rates can affect the rates

and financial assets and financial liabilities. The effective interest rates for the

d at the reporting date if counter parties fail to perform as contracted. Out of the total financial

assets of PKR 2,378,323,984 , unsecured local trade debts, advances to suppliers, and other receivables amounting in aggregate to PKR 1,851,650,478 are subject to

credit risk. The Company manages its credit risk by; limiting significant expo!

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds t
position, This includes maintenance of statement of financial po:

and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer.

foreign exchange risk management

sure to any individual customers and obtaining advance against sales.

o meet commitments. The management closely monitors the Company's liquidity and cash flow

sition liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. As at Dec 31, 2021, the total foreign currency risk

exposure was PKR 353,172,466 in respect of foreign trade debts.
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835 Credit risk

43.5.1

435.2

43.5.3

43.5.4

Ended Dec 31, 2021

Maximum credit exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets, excluding cash in hand, represents maximum credit exposure. The maximum

exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is:

Note Dec 31, 2021
Rupees

Long term deposits 41,621,816

Trade debts 1,835,119,346

Advances to employees 4,346,979

Refundable trade deposits 184,444,861

Other receivables 8,930,556

Cash at banks 294,213,879

2,368,677,437

Concentration of credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk by geographical region as at the reporting date is:

Domestic 1,557,966,219

Europe 251,953,043

Asia and Middle East 98,381,311
1,908,300,573

Impairment (73,181,227)

1,835,119,346

Aging and movement in Impairment losses

The aging of receivables as at the reporting date is as follows:

Not past due 1,222,141,634

Past due less than one year 612,977,712

Past due more than one year but less than three years 2,967,136

Past due more than three years 70,214,091
1,908,300,573

Allowance for expected credit losses (73,181,227)

1,835,119,346rrThe movement in allowance for impairment in respect of receivables during the period/year is as follows:

As at beginning of the year 83,553,311

Impairment loss recognized
*

-

impairment loss reversed (10,372,084)

As at end of the period/year 73,181,227

Credit quality of counter parties is assessed based on historical default rates. All loans and receivables not past due are

considered good. The management believes that allowance for impairment of loans and receivables past due is not

necessary, as these comprise amounts due from old customers, which have been re-negotiated from time to time and are

Collateral held

The Company does not hold collateral to secure its loans and receivables. However, foreign trade receivables of the

Company are secured through letters of credits and exposure to credit risk in respect of these is minimal.
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43.6 Liquidity risk

Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments

As at December 31, 2021
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less five years five years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term financing 2,666,565,469 3,549,554,935 300,096,407 1,571,208,933 1,678,249,595
Accrued mark-up / interest 23,361,391 23,361,391 23,361,391 - -

Trade creditors 573,043,478 573,043,478 573,043,478 - -

Accrued liabilities 275,456,108 275,456,108 275,456,108 - -

Unclaimed dividend 1,720,632 1,720,632 1,720,632 - -

Other payables 88,752,567 88,752,567 88,752,567 - -

3,660,197,120 4,545,696,643 1,296,238,115 1,571,208,933 1,678,249,595

Dec 31, 2021
43.7 Market risk Rupees

43.7.1 Currency risk

a) The Company's exposure to currency risk as at the reporting date is as follows:

Trade receivables 350,334,354
Cash and cash equivalents 2,838,112

Total exposure 353,172,466

b} Exchange rates applied as at the reporting date.
The following spot exchange rates were applied as at the reporting date wherever applicable.

Dec 31, 2021
Assets Liabilities
Rupees Rupees

CHF 194.65 194.10
JPY 1.5410 1.5460
Euro 201.18 201.74
CNY 28.15 28.22
UsD 177.45 177.95

A ten percent appreciation in Rupee would have decreased profit or loss by PKR 35,317,247. A ten percent depreciation
would have had the equal but opposite effect on profit or loss. This sensitivity analysis based on assumption that all

variables, with the exception of foreign exchange rates, remain unchanged.
* Dec 31, 2021

43.7.2 Interest rate risk Rupees

The interest rate profile the Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting
date is as follows:

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 184,444,861
Financial liabilities 2,530,038,883

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets -

Financial liabilities 62,645,155

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk in respect of its fixed rate instruments. A 100 basis points increase in

variable interest rates would have decreased profit or loss by PKR 626,451. A 100 basis points increase in variable interest
rate would have had an equal but opposite impact on profit or loss.
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43.7.3 Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors

specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The company is not exposed to commodity price risk as it does not hold financial instruments based commodity prices.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities. The fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value is shown below. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not
measured at fair value as the carrying amountis a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial assets
Long term deposits
Trade debts
Advances to employees
Refundable trade deposits
Other receivables
Cash at banks

Financial Liabilities

Long term financing
Short term borrowings
Accrued mark-up / interest
Trade creditors
Accrued liabilities
Unclaimed dividend

Other payables

The basis for determining fair values is as follows:
Interest rates used for determining fair value

Carrying amount
Dec-21

At amortized
cost

Fair value
through profit

or loss

Fair value
through other
comprehensive

income

41,621,816
1,835,119,346

4,346,979
- 190,837,811

8,930,556
294,213,879

Rupees

2,375,070,387

2,666,565,469
31,297,475
23,361,391

573,043,478
275,456,108

1,720,632
14,644,044

3,586,088,597

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield curve at the reporting
date plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets are fixed rate instruments, there is no significant
difference in market rate and the rate of instrument, fair value significantly approximates to carrying value.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The associated undertaking and related parties comprise associated companies, directors and key management personnel. Names, basis of relationship and

transaction with associated undertakings and related parties, other than remuneration and benefits to key management personnel under the term of their

employment as disclosed in note 37 are as follow: ; .

Name of the Company Basis of relationship
:

: Percentage of shareholding

Faisal Spinning Mills Limited Common directorship
:

: N/A

Blessed Textiles Limited Common directorship }

- N/A
Bhanero Energy Limited Common directorship Co N/A
Admiral (Private) Limited Directorship of close family relative Coo N/A

Co 31-Dec-21

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions
} on Rupees

Associated undertaking Services received : Lo
:

154,500

Electricity purchased : . } 210,227,194

Purchase of yarn, fabric
Co TL 113,122,337

Sales of cotton, yarn, fabric fo 564,123,959

“1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of chief executive officer, director and executives is disclosed in note 37.

Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management looks at the current income tax law and the decisions of

appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. oo .

Investment stated at fair value

Management has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from active market conditions and information about the financial

instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve some uncertainties and matters of judgment (e.g. valuation, interest rate, etc.) and

therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Co Lo

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the rate of depreciation, useful life, residual value and value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding affect on the
depreciation charge and impairment.

Stock-in-trade and stores and spares
The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and stores ‘and spares to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values. Any change in

the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and spares with a corresponding affect on the amortization

charge and impairment. Net realizable value is determined with respectto estimated selling price less estimated expenditures to make the sales.

5

Interest rate and cross currency swap
The Company has entered into various interest rates and cross currency swap over the last year. The calculation involves use of estimates with regard to
interest and foreign currency rates which fluctuate with the market forces.

’ .

Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. The Company seeks to keep a balance between

the higher return that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company
monitors ‘capital using the gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances including current maturity. Total

capital employed includes total equity as shown in the statement of financial position plus debt. The Company's ‘strategy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure in order to minimize cost of capital. Gearing ratio of the Company as at the reporting date is as follows:

31-Dec-21
: Rupees

Total debt 2,750,184,120
Total equity 7,983,248,542

10,733,432,662

Gearing Co 26%

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the period. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital

requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly imposed bythe providers of debt finance.

Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments
There are no recurring or non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date. The management considers the carrying amount of all the financial

instruments approximate to their fair values.
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41.2 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments.

None of the assets and liabilities other than certain financial instruments are measured at fair value.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 31-Dec-21

Spinning & Weaving
Number of spindles instalied 80,112
Number of looms installed 162

Installed capacity of yarn converted in 20/1 (Kgs.) 14,810,385
Actual production of yarn (Kgs.) 6,610,481
Installed capacity of fabric based on SO picks- meters 26,566,890
Actual production of fabric - meters 10,777,924

It is difficult to precisely describe production capacity and the resultant production converted into base count in the textile industry since it

fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, raw materials used, spindles speed and twist etc. It would also vary
accordingly to pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 31-Dec-21

As at the reporting date
1,416

Average for the period
.

1,395
DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on 07.APR 2022
CORRESPONDING FIGURES

figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Corresponding figures have been re-arranged where necessary to facilitate comparison.
However, no significant reclassification has been made.

GENERAL

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.VL SR ~~ ANamar - 7 [Zz CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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